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OUR MISSION

In striving to become a world leader in the consumer
electronics arena, we pledge to serve customers with
innovation and qualily services, operate an efficient
organization to create value for all stakeholders and
honour our responsibilitics as a good global corporate
citizen.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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BUSINESS REVIEW

RESULTS

In summary, the Group experienced mixed results in fiscal 2008.
While we recarded an increase in gross profit, the Group saw
a 9.7% reduction in turnover in the current year while profit
attributable to shareholders decreased by 56%. These results,
illustrate the rapidly changing landscape of doing business
in our industry. Certain challenges were out of the Group's
control: an appreciating RMB, a weakening US dollar, changing
Chinese labour laws, increases in the price of oil, key component
shortages and a general malaise in domestic US consumer
spending. As a result of these factors the Group was caught
between price commitments to customers in the first half of
the year and increasing costs and expenses incurred after those
commitments were made.

To meet these challenges, Management focused on ways to cut
cost and better paosition itself to do business in a new world
of increased economic pressure. Over-all, the Group's results
reflect aur doing business in this changing environment - fairing
reasonably well (with some bright spots) while having to take
measures to adapt to the challenges we face. We emerged from
fiscal 2008 with a better perspective of our industry and are
positioned to better compete on the world stage in fiscal 2009.

Electronics Division

Annual sales totals in the Electronics Division in 2008 were
9.7% lower than in fiscal 2007. This decrease coincided with
reduced consumer spending in the United States which fell
sharply during and after the 2007 holiday selling season despite
reasonably strong sales in the first half of the year. In addition, a
shortage of small TFT screen panels not only adversely affected
the performance of the industry as a whole, it forced us to
reduce sales of small screen TFT products {(such as portable DVD
players) to those for which we could secure panels. All the while
severe competition in the video products business continued to
make it difficult to increase sales in the opening price point DVD
category.

On the other hand, sales in our karaocke and musical instruments
category, through the Group’s subsidiary, The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ("SMC"} increased by 27%; contrary to the
general downward trend in consumer spending, the Group’s
preducts in this category fulfill a specialty segment of the
consumer market which has gained general acceptance in US
households for wholesome “family entertainment”. We also
experienced strong performance in our other branded businesses
with aur DisneyTM line meeting Management'’s expectations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW - continued

Electronics Division - continued

Notwithstanding these challenges the Group was able to
forge an overall increase in annual gross profit margin due to
Management's execution of a strategy to change product mix
and sales focus. In particular, we refocused our sales efforts to
increase domestic inventory transactions. This allowed us to sell
smaller minimum order quantities at more favourahle prices.
By increasing our distribution presence in the United States we

‘were able to sell directly to major retail chains through our three

United States based subsidiaries: SMC, Cosme Communications
Corporation, and Starlite Consumer Electronics (USA) Inc. This
strategy .opened new avenues for the Group to reach out to
leading retailers by providing them shorter delivery schedules and
customized quantities. As a whole the Group's gross profit margin
increased from 20% in 2007 to 24% -in 2008 notwithstanding
weaker second half sales and increased distribution and financing
costs caused by the need to carry inventory and to provide
warehousing and freight transportation.

Gross profit margin in the second half of the year, howevey,
was well below expeciations for a number of reasons — many
of which were beyond Management's control. While pricing for
products was set in the first half of the year, we were forced to
absorb cost increases without being able to pass the costs on to
customers. The industry as a whole saw a sharp rise in the prices
of plastic resin and key components such as TFT small screen
panels, Labour cost was also affected as a result of the change
in China legistration. In addition surges in oil prices warldwide
led to a significant increase in freight and transportation costs
over 2007. Selling and distribution costs increased by 38% over
the previous year as did the Group's royalty payments which
include fees paid to Disney. To stimulate sales, we sponscred a
rebate program with a leading US department store chain and
expended promotional funds to promote our Disney line leading
to a HK$24 million increase in advertising expense in fiscal 2008.
Finance expense also grew due to increased factoring activities
and inventory carrying costs. We continued 1o carry unexpected
inventory balances in the last quarter of the fiscal year as a result
of weaker sales in the United States. No less significant is the
fact that manufacturing in China continued 1o present the Group
with many challenges caused by the rapid growth of the Chinese
economy and the steep appreciation of the Chinese RMB.

In response to these difficult conditions the Group implemented
cost controls to hold the line on administrative expenses and we
saw a decrease in administrative casts over 2007. Management
has also taken additional steps to reduce inventory te appropriate
levels and have revised our forecasts for the new fiscal year based
on current market conditions.

Annual Report 2008 & 3k
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BUSINESS REVIEW - continued

Securities Trading

The Group recorded a segment result of a loss of HK$6.1 million
for the year.

PROSPECTS

Management is cautiously optimistic in its outlook for 2009. The
full effect of Management's operational changes and strategies
should lead to more efficiency and greater performance at lower
cost in the coming year. Qur belief is based on seeing 2008’
operational changes to increase the Group’s efficiency while our
cost cutting measures should increase performance.

The Group shoufd see the benefits from 2008' cost cutting
measures al its Chinese manufacturing facilities as well as
increased efficiencies in total administration costs. The price of
key supplies and raw materials should stabilize including small
screen TFT panels. We believe that the recent economic measures
taken in China should stabilize the value of the RMB.

Growth in karacke and musical instruments business should
increase and we will continue to build our Disney branded
business with popular character based specialty products. We will
also be developing advanced higher margin products such as Blu-
Ray DVD players in coliaboration with Sony and its affiliates. We
look forward to launching new product lines including Hamilton
Beach branded kitchen electronics and specialty Youth Electronics
products targeted to children between the ages of eight and
thirteen in collaboration with Wal-Mart who has ordered these
products for over 3,000 stores for delivery in third quarter of
2008.

We believe that our refocus on factory to retailer sales coupled
with more efficient operations will position the Group to
outperform the industry and the challenges presented by
an uncertain econcemic environment. Our goal for 2009,
therefore, will be to deliver profitable operations and to
enhance shareholders’ value. With our current Management and
infrastructure we expect to achieve these goals.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liguidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained stable. As at
31 March 2008 cash and depagsits and marketable securities
amounted to HK$106 million, as compared to HK$139 million
last year.

Gearing ratio, calculated as total borrowings to shareholders’
fund was 0.59 (2007: 0.41}, and net bank borrowings to
shareholders’ fund was 0.50 for the year (2007: 0.30). Current
ratio calculated as current assets to current liabilities decreased
fram 1.58 in last year to 1.47 for this year.
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FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

Financing and Capital Structure

The Group finances its operations by a combination of equity
and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2008, the Group's total
borrowings of about HK$465 million (2007: HK$331 million), of
which HK$430 million are repayable within one year and HK$35
million are repayable within five years.

The Group's transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. The exposure to exchange risk was
insignificant.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 March 2008, the Group pledged certain assets and
securities with carrying value of HK$133,827,000 (2007:
HK$136,058,000) to secure the general credit facilities and the
margin accounts with brokers.

Contingent Liabilities

SMC, which was acquired by the Group during the year ended
31 March 2007, is one of the defendants in a lawsuit relating
to copyright infringement. In September 2005, the defendants,
including SMC, filed multiple motions to dismiss the complaint
from the publisher owners of musical compositions. In October
2005, the plaintiff filed a motion for summary judgment. In
January 2006, the court granted the motions of the defendants
and denied the motion of the plaintiff, thereby dismissing
the case against the defendants with prejudice. The plaintiff
thereafter appealed the decision. During the year, the claims
against SMC were dismissed with prejudice and the lawsuit was
concluded.

As at 31 March 2007, the Group was a defendant in a lawsuit
in the amount of US$100,000 (equivalent to HK$770,000). The
case was settled during the year.

STAFF

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had a total staff of 3,610
of which 3,488 were employed in the PRC for the Group’s
manufacturing and distribution business.

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,
medical scheme retirement scheme, discretionary bonus and share
option scheme and also provides in-house training programmes
and external training sponsorship.

Annual Report 2008 F $&
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau 5ak Hong, Philip, aged 61, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group. He has been in the Group for
38 years and has over 38 years of management experience in the
electronics industry.

Mr. Lau Sak Kai, Anthony, aged 58, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is the Group’s Director responsible for the Group's
overall production management in China. His main duties,
besides the management of PRC production activities, include
the responsibility of local sales in China and the planning and
exploitation of new projects in China. He has been in the Group
for 36 years.

Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy, aged 58, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, is also one of the Group’s Production Directors responsible
for the Group‘s overall production management in China. In
addition, he is in charge of the Research & Development of the
Group. He has been in the Group for 36 years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 1988 and re-
designated as non-executive director of the Company on 28
September 2004. He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for over 38 years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman, aged 52, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 1998. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Exeter, and is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, and a fellow of the Hong Keng Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 21 years of experience in
management and property development.

Mr. Chan Chak Chung, aged 50, was appointed director of the
Company since 30 September 2004. He is a qualified accountant
and has about 27 years experience in the public accountancy
profession. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom.

Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck, aged 52, was appointed director of
the Company since 30 September 2004, He has been practicing
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 26 years. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Arts from the University of Ontario, Canada. He is
also an independent non-executive director of ITC Corporation
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Yat Tung, aged 29, the eldest son of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, joined the Group in 2003 as assistant to Chairman. He
graduated with a Bachelor of Art in Business Marketing from
Indiana University, the Kelley School of Business. Previously,
he held a marketing executive position in Storage Technology
Corp. He is now responsible for corporate relations, local sales
in China, and the integration of the ERP system to facilitate the
madernisation of the Group’s management.

Mr. Lau Yat Sun, aged 28 is the second son of Mr, Lau Sak Hong,
Philip. He graduated at Bentley College, a business specialty
college with a Bachelor of Art in Business Marketing. After
graduation, he worked for an electronics firm in Massachusetts
as a buyer for electronic components. Later on, he joined the
group in 2004 as Product Development President and established
koncepts International Ltd. {"koncepts”), a subsidiary of the
Group. He is currently responsitle for the development of new
digital products for koncepts.

Ms. Lau Chui Lan, Carol, aged 59, is a sister of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip. Ms Lau rejoined the Group in October 2006 to
oversee the financial management and reporting of the Group's
subsidiaries in the United States. Ms Lau served as financial
contraller of the Group from 1986-1988 and was President of
a fully owned subsidiary of the Group in United States from
1990-1996. She has over 31 years of experience in financial
management, business consuitation, financial and regulatory
auditing in Australia, Hong Keng and United States. She
graduated from Curtin University in Perth, Australia in 1975 with
a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting, and held a Master degree in
computing at the Canberra University, Australia in 1980. Ms Lau
is a certified public accountant in the United States.

Mr. Lau Shek Hung, Eric, aged 52, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Haong, Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group. He
is responsible for the Group’s Colour TV manufacturing business.
He has been in the Group for 12 years and has over 19 years of
experience in the electronics field.

Mr. Lau Sek Hoi, Jacky, aged 49, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group.
He is holding a science degree from one Ausiralian university
and is currently responsible for the Group's material sourcing,
purchasing and control activities. He has been in the Group for
23 years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued

Mr. Wong Kai Wai, Tony, aged 59, joined the Group as General
Manager in 2005. He started his career in the audic and video
manufacturing business since 1967. He was formerly a director
of a television manufacturing company listed in Hong Kong. He
supervises and coordinates different divisions of the Group.

Mr. Lam Wang Tat, Thomas, aged 51, joined the Group as the
president of the Group’s Marketing Division. He has 31 years
experience as IT veteran, and his background was in software,
consulting system integration and management. He has extensive
experience in sales, marketing, management, consulting,
project management, software development and in consumer
electronic business. He was formerly a director of various major
multinational IT companies.

Mr. Chow Wing Hon, Alfred, aged 57, joined the Group in
March 2006 and is responsible for the Group’s corporate
development and overseas operations. He graduated from the
University of Hawaii in 1973 with a Bachelors degree in Business
Administration. He spent most part of his werking career (21
years) with the Hong Kong Jockey Club, holding senior positions
in Internat Audit, Administration and Racing Registry.

Mr. Chan Po Chung, Norman, aged 57, joined the Group as
a Financial Controller in 1988 for supervising the Group's
accounting, financial and corporate aspects. He is a qualified
accountant with over 23 years of auditing, commercial and
financial experience.

Mr. Anton Handal, aged 53, joined the Company as Counsel, for
matters related to United States activities in 2005 and regularly
advises the Group on legal and business matters. He joined
The Singing Machine Company, Inc, as its Chief Executive Officer
on June 21,2007. The Singing Machine Company, Inc is listed
on the American Stock Exchange (AMEX) and is engaged in the
development, distribution, marketing and sales of consumer
karaoke and musical instruments. The Singing Machine
distributes its products worldwide. He received his Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics from the University of California at
Los Angeles in 1980 and his Juris Doctorate from Southwestern
University School of Law in 1982. Mr. Handal is a member
in good standing with the State Bar of California and is also
admitted to the Bars of the United States Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals, and the United States District Courts for the Southern
and Central and Northern Districts of Catifornia, the Federal
Circuit Court of Appeal and the Central District of Florida. He
has also served as a member of the Villa View Hospital board of
directors, and is a former member of the Board of Trustees of the
San Diego Railread.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 69, was appointed Chief Executive
Officer of Cosmo in January 2001. He is the co-founder of
Cosmo Canada and has been its CEQ since 1988. Mr. Horak has
extensive knowledge and experience in distribution of consumer
electronics products in Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo Canada in
1982, Mr. Horak worked with several top electronic companies
and served as Sanyo's Vice President of Sales and Marketing.
He leads the sales team to open new markets and develop new
products and works closely with the administrative group and
warehouse supporting group.

Mr. Jeff Horak, aged 49, joined one of the Group US subsidiary
Cosmo Communications Canada Inc. as Vice President of Sales
& Marketing since 1981, He is responsible for sales, business
development of foreign markets and develops various product
lines, which Cosmo distribute.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a bigh standard of
corporate governance. The Board of directors of the Company
{"the Board"”) firmly believes that to maintain a good, solid
and sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure
the Company to run its business in the best interests of its
shareholders as a whale.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kang Limited (“the Listing Rules”)
as its own code on corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company has
complied with the Code except the following:

1. Pursuant to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of respansibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing. Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong is currently the chairman
and managing director of the Company. Having considered
the current business operation and the size of the Group,
the hoard of directors of the Company is of the view that
Mr. Lau acting as both the chairman and managing director
of the Company is acceptable and in the best interest of the
Company. The Board will review this situation pertodically.

2. The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted
by private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited
Company Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act"”). Pursuant
to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act, director holding office as
executive chairman or managing director shall not be subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting as
provided in the bye-laws of the Company (“the Bye-laws").
As the Company is bound by the provisions of the 1989
Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the
requirements of the code provision A.4.2 which stipulates
that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject te retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Philip
Lau Sak Hong, the chairman and managing director of
the Company will voluntarily retire from his directorship at
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every
three years in order for the Company to comply with the
Code, provided that, being eligible for re-election, he may
offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible
and effective manner. Each director has to carry out histher
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Group.

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for the
management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company.

The Board of the Company consisis of three executive directors,
three independent non-executive directors and one nen-executive
director. Their brief biographical details are described on page 8
of the Annual Report.

The independent non-executive directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from a diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standards of financial
and other mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate
check and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors and non-
executive director has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company pursuant to which each of them is appointed for
service with the Company from 1 October 2007 to 30 September
2009. The appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i) 30
September 2009, or (i) the date on which the director ceases
to he director for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the
Company or any other applicable laws.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The full Board meets no less than four times a year to review the
financial and operating performance of the Group. Additional
board meetings were held when necessary. Due notice and
board papers were given to all directers prior to the meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Code. The Board
has established procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

There were four {4) regular Board meetings held in the financial
year ended 31 March 2008. The attendance record of each
director is shown below. All business transacted at the above
meetings are well-documented and maintained in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.

HEEBRANIE
No. of board
EEgR Name of director meeting attended
845 B Philip Lau Sak Hong 4
Bli5H Anthony Lau Sak Kai 4
ZHR Andy Lau Sak Yuk 4
RIEE Peter Hon Sheung Tin 4
] [E % Norman Ho Hau Chong 3
B E fp Chan Chak Chung 4
5EH Winston Calptor Chuck 2
EEESBETE DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
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The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules {“the Model Code”), as the code of
conduct regarding director’s securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2008.

In addition, the Board also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for senior management
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its
expertise, there are two Board committees namely, the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee formed under the
Board, with each performing different functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which is chaired by Mr. Norman Ho Hau
Chong, has been established with defined terms of reference in
alignment with the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
af Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out
in the Corperate Governance Code of the Listing Rules. Other
members are Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Chan Chak Chung.

The Audit Committee meets no less than twice a year with
the senior management and the external auditors. The role
and function of the Audit Committee include: to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
other financial reporting matters, to assure the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the financial statement of the Group,
discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
throughout the Group and maost importantly, and to review all
significant business affairs managed by the executive directors
in particular on connected transactions. The Committee also
provides advice and recommendations to the Board and oversees
all matters relating to the external auditors, and it plays an
important role in monitoring and safeguarding the independence
of external auditors.

The Audit Committee met two (2) times during the financial year
ended 31 March 2008. Work undertaken by the audit committee
included:

— reviewing of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2007 and for the six months ended 30 September
2007,

-  reviewing of the auditors’ fees and its re-appointment; and

- considering and approve the 2008 audit fees and audit
wark.

The attendance record of each member is shown below. All
business transacted at the above meetings are well-documented
and maintained in accordance with applicable laws and
regulatians.
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BREBRY - AUDIT COMMITTEE - continued
HESZERERE Y
No. of audit
committee
ERZEEeeBNE Name of audit committee member meeting attended
I E % Norman Ho Hau Chong 1
$#iEH Peter Han Sheung Tin 2
PRE P Chan Chak Chung 2
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The Company which is chaired by Mr. Peter Han Sheung Tin, has
been established with defined terms of reference. Other members
are Mr. Chan Chak Chung and Mr. Winston Calpter Chuck.

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract
and retain executive needed to run the Group successiully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst taking into account performance of the individual. The
remuneration should reflect performance, complexity and
responsibility of the individual; and the remuneration package
will be structured to include salary, bonus and share options
scheme to provide incentives to directors and senior management
to improve their individual performances.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include formulation of the remuneration policy, review and
recommending to the Board the annual remuneration policy, and
determination of the remuneration of the executive directors.

Work undertaken by the Remuneration Committee during the
year included:

- reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2007/2008; and

- reviewing of the remuneration of the executive directors and
the independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee meets once during the financial
year ended 31 March 2008 with the presence of Mr. Peter Hon
Sheung Tin and Mr. Chan Chak Chung.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Directors has not established a nomination
committee. According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Board has the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. in assessing nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into consideration of the nominee’s
qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company.
There was no change of the composition of the Board during
financial year ended 31 March 2008.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
The remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2008 are analysed as follows:

2008¥3A31H

T

31 March 2008

HK$

RS Audit service 2,200,000
IEEERTE Non audit service 355,000
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In respect of non-audit services, the fees paid to the Company’s
auditors related to tax compliance and tax consulting services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board 1o facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and ather information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008, the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the applicable laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as going concern. The Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Company
are disclosed in “Independent Auditor's Report”.

Annual Report 2008 8

STIY L |

17




18

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

&3 ¥ 2

BB &
HERATERLIARARLNFTRATERERSA
BzreEEwE  EPaEas —fAER
SRAZEMELRE RELOAETOE
BAKEDR BEREMCREIAFENRSE
ARMEANIFABROMHGZA - XAER
MTHEMZERIRAR - ZHEEERE - B
FEHRBTELERERR  YEEXE
W HBRRARSEMERRBEREBR
P RBRER -

FR ARRCHEREE—BEE MRS A
MELHEZAXAY FRRERBE -
THREMEERERGER  LREHEHR
o ER A IR ST -

BEAR
BHBRMZENDABRRAREHERERRZ
HEEAH BERSEABIATEELR
RZHEH -

FoBfA-FIEALA  BEABRRE
MEIBEXRBER EPERBREATAE -
FH-ZRAS - 2HEER ERBER
RRZEFOHARHBHABEARGESZ
AQBBE FPRERAEOHEREH

RW7FRRAFAEGL EHUREERT
EEBRBURESHRERBRE -HER
EREBERZECHFHERGXNACHE
2007 FRRBFARE  BERRER -

e

ARAFEE CREAEERKFERBAE
MABEEREEHZ - RIFMEEERT
BRERBDAEASAARSERR LRI
BEME- ERABBRHERERFOLRE
BB EESATE  BH&E - NER
HERMEERERRFEFREE -

Starlight International Holdings Ltd  # BIERER SRR 2 &

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguard its assets against unauthorized use of disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliances with relevant faws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group's operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group's objectives.

During the year, the Company has initiated a project to review
the effectiveness of system of internal control including risk
management system. The report and findings has been submitted
to the Board and follow-up plan has been adopted based on
recommendations,

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is te provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so
that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by
poll has been included in circular of the Company accompanying
notice convening general meeting and has been read oui by the
chairman at the general meeting.

At the 2007 annual general meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue,
including re-election of directors. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors and members of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee attended the 2007 annual general meeting to answer
questions from shareholders.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management
and the operations of -the Group’s business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective
allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’ interests.
The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s
corporate governance.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of a
wide range of electronic products and securities trading.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

An interim dividend of HK4.80 cents per share amounting to
HK$37,938,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year.
The directors resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 and propose that the
profit for the year be retained.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of HK$48,593,000 to expand its business. Details
of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 1o the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 5,165,000
of its own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that, as the
Company's shares were trading at a discount to the net asset
value per share, the repurchases would increase the net asset
value per share of the Company. The Company also issued
3,160,000 new shares as a result of the exercise of share options
and 4,776,214 new shares as scrip dividends.

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to accumulated profits, under The Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company's reserves available
for distribution at the balance sheet date consisted of contributed
surplus of HK$75,263,000 (2007: HK$75,263,000) and
accumulated profits of HK$9,357,000 (2007; HK$81,683,000).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy

Non-executive director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Independent non-executive directors:
He Hau Chong, Norman

Chan Chak Chuna

Chuck Winston Calptor
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS - continued

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Messrs. Andy Lau
Sak Yuk, Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong will
retire from office by ratation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In addition, Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, who is the chairman
and managing director of the Company and is not subject to
the retirement by rotation pursuant io Starlight International
Holdings Limited Company Act 1989, will voluntarily retire from
his directorship at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
offer himself for re-election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a
term of two years until 30 September 2009 and are subject to
retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, has provided a personal guarantee
to indemnify the Group for any impairment aof an unlisted
available-for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15 million
{2007: HK$15 million}.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations {within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) which are required (a}
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO {including interests
or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFQ); or (b} pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

BESSE S
RE/HR ERBE Approximate
Long positionf L) Number of percentage of
Exns Name of director short position Capacity shares held shareholding
BITEE: Executive directors:
BBk Lau Sak Hong, Philip RE BalEA 91,583,029 11.59%
Long position Beneficial owner
BEREER ARz E% 3,165,277 0.40%
(Hfita)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note a)
BERERARZIER 10,700,415 1.28%
(Hiztn)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note b)
EHEESEE (F#c) 169,069,209 21.39%
Held by trust {note ¢)
273,917,930 34.66%

Starlight International Holdings Lid  # MBS R & T
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ERRHEE

EEo8508s -8 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES -~ continued
BESSES L
RR/#& BRYA Approximate
Long position/ -2 Number of percentage of
BEEHE Name of director short position Capacity shares held shareholding
BiTES: Executive directors: |
- - continued !
2|53 Lau Sak Kai, Anthony A HIBHEA 37,976,336 4.80% |
Long position Beneficial owner
BEHIER LT 2 E R 3,165,277 0.40%
(fizta)

Interest of controlled
corporation {note a)

BERERARZES 10,100,415 1.28%
(Kizth)
Interest of controlled
corporation {note b)

51,242,028 6.48%
ZNHR {au Sak Yuk, Andy -5 BxEEAA 35,827,445 4.53%
Long position Beneficial owner
BERERLAZES 3,165,277 0.40%
(Hista)
Interest of controiled
corporation (hote a)
E=E Rt S NET R 10,100,415 1.28%
{Hiith)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note b)
49,093,137 6.21%
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

FRENEIH
ER/HR KREB Approximate
Long position/ B Number of percentage of
j Y2 Name of director short pasition Capacity shares held shareholding
FHTES: Non-executive
director:
#iEm Hon Sheung Tin, Peter ER BHEAEA 206,769 0.03%
Long position Beneficial owner
BIUEMATEE . Independent non-executive
director:
25E Chuck Winston Calptor A BiHEEA 770,000 0.10%
Lang position Benaficial owner
Bt - Notes:

ZERMNHEBHZIGHE - AHHEREG
BUERHEMREXEEEIAREED 2
B e5E A 7 A FIK.€. Nominees Limited$
ﬁu

{a) (a)

RERMNERAHIRREREZBERGHE
B Z 2 RWincard Management Services
Limited}¥ 7 °

{b)

(© ZERGH—SEETESRAEERI 2 ()
B)Philip Lau Holding Corporation B 1 5[
E2dNHEEs Z2EERESZER
ABREIHSREHEBEAL

REXHEPESEREEFEMLF A R EK
BRAIRTASNEAMNBERRIZETRE
MBSO B20085E3 RN ALK ETME
ERFETHABRI X AISEBE LS F
ER A REEEMEXVE 27 - 88
RIGKEHPHEGEEESRAERIEXY
H7ESD BBREAANEGALFRBRZN &
BEBKRFELEREZHFRBEEGEIEIS
KEATHREZREMuREEETAENE
P N/NCIDR Rl e

in the

These shares are held by K.K. Neminees Limited, a company which
is wholly and beneficially owned by Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Lau Sak
Kai, Anthony and Lau Sak Yuk, Andy (hereinafter collectively with
other family members referred to as the "Lau’s family”).

These shares are held by Wincard Management Services Limited,
a company which is wholly and beneficiaily owned by the Lau's
family.

These shares are wholly and beneficially owned directly or
indirectly by Philip Lau Holding Corporation, a company
beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include Lau Sak Hong, Philip and his associates.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company

or any of its associated corporations {within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
ar as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFC or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

AEBERARLA

Starlight international Holdings Ltd
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share options of the Company

The Campany has a share optioﬁ scheme which was approved
and adopted at the specia! general meeting of the Company
held on 12 September 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) for a period of
5 years. The primary purpose is to provide incentives or rewards
to participants for their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants of the Old Scheme included any employees, non-
executive directors, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
advisors or consultants and shareholders of any member of the
Group.

The maximum number of share options which might be issued
upon exercise of afl options to be granted under the Old Scheme
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue while
overall limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised should not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the option granted to each participant (except substantial
shareholder, independent non-executive director, or their
respective associates) in any 12 maonth period up to the date of
the grant should not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares should be taken up under an
option was any period as determined by the Board, which should
not be more than 5 years from the date on which the option was
granted. The option might be exercised by the grantee at any
time during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options was determined
by the Board, but would be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of
the closing price of the shares of the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the offer date; or {iii) the nominal value of the shares
on the offer date.

The consideration for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no
circumstance be refundable.
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B -8 SHARE OPTIONS - continued .

ERRZPRRE - K ) Share options of the Company — continued
BHEER07FEIANNEER HiE B The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and thereafter,
AAREEIT R L AR - R EREL 8 no more aption could be granted pursuant to the Old Scheme.
EREzZERETES AEEXBNRE In respect of the options already granted under the Old Scheme,
W BEEBHNECPEFAEERETREREZH the provisions shall remain in force. The movements during the
RERSFEFERZEBEROT : year of the share options granted to certain employees of the

Group pursuant to the Cld Scheme were as follows:

BERERE
Number of share options
20075 20085
4818 3A318
e & 17 6F FEERITHE i R AT
fTHEM Qutstanding Exercised Outstanding
BETAH Exercise as at during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2007 the year 31.3.2008
T
HK$
10.10.2003 0.86 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
2.11.2004 0.814 2,500,000 (2,000,000) 500,006
5.1.2006 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
16.8.2006 1.15 500,000 (500,000} -
13.11.2006 1.45 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
4.1.2007 1.66 820,000 (600,000} 220,000
1.2.2007 1.72 100,000 {60,000} 40,000
7.3.2007 1.93 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
\
23,920,000 (3,160,000) 20,760,000 !

FEEABRBEEE - Ao 8FE LER Mo share options were granted pursuant to the Cld Scheme
HE o during the year.

26 Starlight International Holdings Ltd A MERER 2 3
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SHARE OPTIONS - continued
Share options of the Company — continued
Notes:

(a} The above options were granted for an exercise period of five
years from the date of grant of the options.

(b No option was lapsed or cancelled during the year.

{c) The weighted average closing price per share immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$1.05.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved
and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10 years. The primary
purpose is to recognise the contribution of participants and to
recruit and retain high calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants
of the New Scheme included any full time employees {including
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not}, suppliers, consultants, agents and advisors
of the Group.

The maximum number of shares options which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue at
the adoption date of the New Scheme on 15 January 2008 while
overall limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the option granted to each participant in any 12 months
period up to the date of the grant shall not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue unless certain conditions are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option is any period as determined by the Board, which shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
granted. The option may be exercised by the grantee at any time
during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the
Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing
price of shares on the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
offer date; or (i) the nominal value of the shares on the offer
date.
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BRE-m SHARE OPTIONS — continued
Rh@hE o RERERL  ZEBEMTAS The consideration for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no
DT AR - circumstance be refundable.

REFNGBEETFAERAETER 2 BIRE The movements of the share options granted to certain
BEEALWT employees of the Group pursuant to the New Scheme were as
follows:

FRERHER
72008F3H31H
MARTEZ
BEENE
Number of
share options
granted during

TER the year and
BHAWM Exercise outstanding
Date of grant price as at 31.3.2008
BT
HK$
23.1.2008 1.042 150,000
28.1.2008 0.96 346,000
496,000

AFERER TEBEFHAESHERE TR No share options were granted to the directors of the Company

AR|EE - pursuant to the New Scheme during the year.
Bt - Notes:
(a) AFEREHRSEARIOERNTTE - {a) The above options were granted for an exercise period of ten

years from the date of grant of the opticns.

(b) AFEWEBAERIEE - {b} No option was lapsed or cancelled during the year.

(© BER0085F 1 A230 BREEE A 24N (] The closing price per share immediately before 23 January 2008,
A WmEAFHR08AEIL - the date on which the options were granted; was HK$0.84.

(d) FER008FT 1280 EREELB 280 (d) The closing price per share immediately before 28 January 2008,
B-EmBASR097ET - the date on which the options were granted, was HK$0.97.

28  Sstarlight International Holdings Ltd  #AERERA T
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i | SHARE OPTIONS - continued
The Singing Machine Company, Inc. Share options of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a
(TSMC| - AR A HS4.07% R 2 A Q 54.07% owned subsidiary of the Company.
G)) 7 B
SMCEBREB ZAEHR AN IR EBEH Particulars of the share option scheme of SMC are set out in note
33~ 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
HESMCEHBEEFR M TES 2B The movements of the share options granied to certain
EZREBRNAT - employees of the Group pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as |
follows: |
MERERE
Number of share options |
20075 HR2008€
4818 3318
i R AT BE FRERY FRETE ERSRN M RATHE
THEM Outstanding Granted Execised Forfeited  Qutstanding
gHam Exercise as at during during during as at
Date of grant price 1.4,2007 the year the year the year 31.3.2008
200049 F5H 2.04 43,650 - - {7,500} 36,150
5 September 2000
200249 K11 H 11.09 30,000 - - - 30,000
11 September 2002
2002712818 9.00 90,140 - - {1,000} 89,140
31 December 2002
2003F3A7E 5.60 30,000 - - - 30,000
7 March 2003
200344188 7.20 10,000 - - - 10,000
18 April 2003
2003128198 1.97 39,600 - - {4,060} 35,540
19 December 2003
20042 A6H 1.54 46,500 - - - 46,500
6 February 2004
2004434291 1.20 20,000 - - - 20,000
29 March 2004
20044268 1.05 12,000 - - - 12,000
26 April 2004
200411 F 298 0.75 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 November 2004
2004F12E1H 0.77 40,000 - - (20,000} 20,000
1 December 2004
20054E5 FgR 0.60 207,000 - - {(25,000) 182,000
9 May 2005
200566 A6H 0.76 30,000 - - - 30,000
6 June 2005
200651 A208 0.34 30,000 - - - 30,000
20 January 2006
20062 H1H 0.32 30,000 - (30,000) - -
1 Februry 2006
2006F3R31H 0.32 80,000 - - - 80,000
31 March 2006
200648108 0.33 484,000 - (117,515) (30,000) 336,485
10 April 2006
2007%F3B31H 0.93 100,000 - - (20,000) 80,000
31 March 2007
2008F3F31H 0.45 - 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2008
1,382,890 120,000 (147,515} {107.560) 1,247,815
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than share option holdings disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or dehentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2008, the following person, other than the
interest disclosed above in respect of the directors, had interest in
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
have been notified to the Company and recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions
required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

FEEEROBA HERTRE

Number of ZATHE
g1 ordinary shares in % of total
HEE Name Capacity which interested issued shares
EHE Lee Yu Chiang BEXEHA 42,140,878 5.33%
Beneficial owner
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft  TIEHE A 86,681,000 10.97%

Beneficial owner

R RlWTEz7EFES] RAESN - R
2008F3A318 - AL ERB(ESF MR
FIyE36BRATHELELCMS - LRTH
HATHERRBZBROPEAEEESL

.
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Save as mentioned above and in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities”, as at 31 March 2008, the register
maintained by the Company pursuani to Section 336 of the SFO
recorded no other interests or short positions in shares of the
Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTICON OF LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, the Company repurchased its shares on the
Stock Exchange as follows:

BEIER0.40BT
iigvid S §E] FRER
Number of shares Price per share am
of HK$0.40 each REM EEE Aggregate
At Month repurchased Lowest Highest  consideration
AT FETT THTT
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
20074F10A October 2007 2,222,500 1.42 1.54 3,371
2007911 A4 November 2007 2,942,500 1.43 1.52 4,333
5,165,000 7,704

SFHORHC2PEE ME 8 DHIT
BAzEETEERE - WED 2 HEHAE
MOERARAPNG - MBSREEBRD
T8 R B R AT F 8 B AR @ -

FREZHMBARLEME - HEHRHEEE
Al 8] ETHEE 5 -

REBABAEE
BEABREZMNYBERCBEEMEFL TR
B ZALDZzARMANESHELHRE
HEZ A3 o

FTEEFEFHHAR
FAEEFARESBGAZEP ZHEBE S
PGSR A S8R 22.98% F62.98% o

AEBBRARBREAMESZBEES G
EHEBEANBEEZEA9%RE195% °

HEF RN A LSRR R (REHE A
BERFEBRAZRSW) EEAEFRHEER
FURFHTAES -

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the neminal value of these shares. The premium on repurchase
was charged against accumulated profits. An amount equivalent
to the nominal value of the shares cancelled was transferred from
accumulated profits to the capital redemption reserve.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for 22.98% and 62.98%
respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 4.9% and
19.5% respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, gualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. No
director or any of his associates, and executive is invelved in
dealing his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all independent non-executive directors 1o
be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less 25%
of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Sak Hong, Philip
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
22 July 2008
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
{incarporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Starlight International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 126, which comprise the consalidated balance sheet
as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consclidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Keong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our respensibility is 1o express an opinion on these consclidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
salely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of The
Companies Act of Bermuda and far no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Starlight International Holdings Ltd #HE&B B R 2 =

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY - continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditer’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2008 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Heng Keng Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Mong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 July 2008




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BZE2008#3A31E LFH

2008 2007
B 5 FHET FiET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$ 000
St Turnover g 2,199,033 2,434,241
HER R Cost of sales {(1,666,311) (1,951,018)
EFH Gross profit 532,722 483,223
H by A Other income 6 22,194 25,709
SHEAEER Distribution costs (295,479) (213,620
TEEA Administrative expenses (168,461) {170,154)
BEMEZ ATHRE increase in fair value of investment
@0 properties 13 27,531 3,322
AR TAY increase in fair value of derivative
~EBES D financial instruments 2,599 3,576
BTrTAEATHEABXE {Decrease) increase in fair
LERMEBELDF value of financial asseis
B (L) #m designated at fair value
through profit or loss {2,167} 1,120
BiEREZREZRT {Decrease) increase in fair value of
EE GRd) investments held for trading (7,976) 1,949
BERRATTHLERE Impairment loss recognised in
ZMEEE respect of available-for-sale investments - {150)
HRELERE L) Gain on deemed partial disposal
ek 2 i of a subsidiary 37 279 10,194
g =1L0) = PN ¥ Gain on. disposal of a subsidiary 38 - 59
BERE Finance costs 7 (47,5%0) (26,975)
FER B0 B A Share of profits of associates 373 1,613
B B AT ) Profit before taxation 8 64,025 119,906
W Taxation 10 (18,531) {9,715)
KERER Profit for the year 45,494 110,191
TR AL : Attributable to:
RARBE Shareholders of the Company 45,914 105,196
LEBRER Minority interests (420 4,995
45,494 110,191
FREERD K Dividends recognised as distribution
i) during the year
—2008ER IR BT — Interim dividend for 2008 of
4 8L (2007F - HK4.8 cents (2007: HK4.5 cents)
4. 5%4) per share 37,938 34,466
‘ —2007E R BB FH — Finat dividend for 2007 of
3.5 (20074 - HK3.5 cents
| 20064 K HAR 8. {2007: final dividend for 2006 of
| 3AL) HK3 cents) per share 27,677 22,735
| 65,615 57,201
BEEHRE EREEN Proposed final dividend of nil
(2007 : 3.5H) per share (2007; HK3.5 cents) 11 - 27,677
AL A 1]
HK cents HK cents
TRER Earnings per share 12
—B& - Basic 5.81 13.8
—#m - Diluted 5.75 13.5
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

b & ¥ AR

At 31 March 2008 %200843A8318

36

2008 2007
B &F FHExT THET
NOTES HK$'000 HK3$'000
EmBAE Non-current assets
SEMR Investment praperties 13 108,652 81,121
MK - BB REMH Property, plant and equipment 14 298,575 305,842
HBEERE Prepaid lease payments 15 65,062 4,136
EmBEREKE Product development costs 16 607 954
[R5 Goodwill 17 27,671 25,494
RE{S B &% 0 BIHERE Interest in associates 19 8,573 8,200
A E IR Available-for-sale investments 20 24,052 24,075
EIEHIEEE Deferred tax assets 31 7,542 1,263
W LthERAEZTT® Depasit for acquisition of land
use rights - 14,711
540,734 465,796
MEEE Current assets
HE Inventories 22 543,606 451,244
EUERIE - IRE R Debtors, deposits and
IR prepayments 23 269,025 343,704
FEREERA Prepaid lease payments 15 1,386 121
FE RIS A TERFX Amounts due from related parties 24 - 17,196
FE B Bk 4% ) B BR7H Amounts due from associates 25 3,989 3,989
Bk k] Taxation recoverable 9,852 11,659
KHIEEEBEZIRE Investments held for trading 26 20,381 25,613
TTEERTA Derivative financial
instruments 21 120 480
EEARATHE Financial assets designated
FTABHEZ at fair value through
SMEE profit or loss 21 8,149 20,795
FIBEFERERE Bank balances and cash 27 77,068 92.401
933,576 967,202
pikh=Rit| Current liabilities
FEREIE BT EA Creditors and accrued charges 28 176,212 273,829
AR NG Amount due to an associate 25 2,809 2,809
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 21 518 438
P BRI Taxation payable 16,603 4,752
TERIEZ B Borrowings — due within one year 29 430,160 329,515
RITEX Bank overdrafts 30 8,171 1,722
634,473 613,065
RBEEFH Net current assets 299,103 354,137
WMEEFAEAE Total assets less current liabilities $39,837 819,933
EI R N Non-current liabilities
EEHERM Deferred tax liabilities 31 5,171 7,583
MIFERBBHZER Borrowings — due after one year 29 34,890 -
40,061 7,583
HEBHE Net Assats 799,776 812,350

Starlight International Holdings Ltd A BB ER 2 7




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A U R K

At 31 March 2008 2008438318

2008 2007
Bt & FHET FHET
NOTE HK$°000 HK$'000
RAEEEE Capital and reserves
il Share capital o032 316,151 315,043
E Reserves 465,588 482,074
FRAIRRERER Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 781,739 797,117
ETHBLRZ Share option reserve of
MR AEGE a listed subsidiary 253 66
L BRR RAE 2 Minority interests 17,784 15,167
Mg Total equity 799,776 812,350

BISREF12AMBZEEECUHRE - & The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 126 were
PR2008F7ANEBHEH IR ERE & T approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

B YR THHEEFRERE: 22 July 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:
BB 680
Lau Sak Hong, Philip Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
R FREEE HE
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BoMmERR

For the year ended 31 March 2008 8% 20088331 B L FR

3 b
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B £ W B ) %

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #%2008F3A318 L FF

IR 1]
44 ] | 11 S| DEF)
1 S 11} Bx fity  REERE
4R Other REIAR  NEMR atibutablets  Share apton M
Br  BEER  ABER  ABER  bwtmen  popety  RNEA Srare Gpal  BHEH  shaeholden e ERAE
hare Share Merger  Goodwdl  rewlustion  resaluatin  Trnslation option  redemption  Accumblated ofte  olalied  Minoiy EH
apal prewim e et [ resen (0] - s pofs  Compary  sibsfay  nteress Totat
An TAK i7.58 Ax tir fin T Tin T Tz A T TH T
00 HEFO00 Er000 00 HR§000 HEFo00 H00 30 5008 M0 HEE 0 HES 00 HI00 HXE00
IR At 31 March 1007 5043 10,39 B (358 3 100 91% 388 51,186 15,006 I % 15,167 Bi2 350
CESERALTE Deremein biv oot
i e Eeede
mestnents - - - i3 - - - ) - ]
FAGRORERTZ  iadarge Cleoce
EES:] A 0 tamlyan
o iicesn opeinns . - - - {147 - - i4h - 51 ¥
RAEZZ238E Kt ocome and epence
CLEFEE e ety
ancy - - - i) - {14 - - - iy - 50 gt
AREER Prfit fo the et . . - - - #5514 501 - (LTI Y Y
IESMAONAR o mooed o
i and e oy te e - - - i) - {141 - B s g s
35,043 100,353 7138 {3,658 L} 2008 4579 3068 51,78 bz H2e8 i 15,360 B54,181
1RERLE Ason el adfond
# intfes 0 4 subsary - - - - - - - - 118 118
3 P (i eerhom b
i ity srareholders of
andedzy - - - - - - - £% 33
BABLEROAR Deemed porid dsposd
Bt of escbegay - - - - - - - - 18 851
MEERTNRE fecogriton of equitpsetled
hzki share e papers - - - - 1 - 15 1] n
RAERREEN e o shaes upon encice
RS o she optons 116 13t - - - 137 - 3m - 330
BARREABRE kol dum sy
Fderd 139 5358 - - - - 18759 -
BERS Rapchase of shares 2.068) - - - - - L0668 (AL (LRH] - (114
Ll Divderds pad - - - - 88 BeEe - [56.84)
#o0zIR313 AL 31 March 2008 316151 109628 1% (36831 (L1 1000 857 358 5385 153,001 1873 5 17784 130
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2008 L1 E2008F3ANE L FE

40

2008 2007
FHEL FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REELZHL Cash flows from operating activities
BEATER Profit before taxation 64,025 119,906
HE - Adjustments for:
FE (LB A D AL Share of profits of associates (373) (1,613)
ERTEN NS Amortisation of product development costs 347 346
BERMAHETHREA Release of prepaid lease payments 1,070 121
mE - BEREMH Depreciation of property,
e plant and equipment 55,198 52,542
BEMEATHEESEM Increase in fair value of investment properties
{27,531) (3,322)
BIEBTIIRE 2 ATE Decrease (increase) in fair value of investments
e (5 n) held for trading 7,976 (1,949)
HESRMIAZ REE Increase in fair value of derivative financial
10 instruments {2,599) (3,576)
ErEARLREFAER Decrease (increase) in fair value of of financial assets
JERMAE 2 RNTHE designated at fair value through profit or loss
A (1) 2,167 (1,120)
BFEHRAEAZRE Dividend income from investments
25 held for trading (1,434) {1,091
ElfER (S & Brokerage expenses on redemption of shares 44 23
ALY 7 AR {53 Share-based payments 312 2,566
RITREA T ZFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 47,590 26,975
FlEHA Interest income (4,342) {1,468)
EERa i ERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
ZREER available-for-sale investments - 150
At R 2 RE Impairment loss on properties for sale
B8 - 356
HEDE  BERRS (Gain} loss on disposal of property,
Z (W) B8 plant and equipment {10) 155
RERBHZFZURGE Net allowance for obsolete and
] slow-moving inventories 1,648 4,057
R Allowance for doubtful debts 5,961 4,489
ERALSHERT Gain on deemed partial disposal of
ERip s 2 iR H a subsidiary (279) {10,194)
HEMBLTZHY Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - (99)
BEDAERRER Effect of foreign exchange rate change
BRI ER on inter-company balances 353 {1,700)
SEARZBRIZEE Operating cash flows before movement

ELERSREA in working capital 150,123 185,554
FEEM Increase in inventories (94,010) (66,788)
EUTERR - He RTEMA Decrease (increase} in debtors,

PRI R L () deposits and prepayments 68,718 (41,358)
FEURES & 2 SRR IEE N Increase in amounts due from associates - {1,049)
BIETEIRE O8b0) Y (Increase) decrease in investments held for trading (2,744) 4,103
TS T AR Decrease in derivative financial instruments 3,039 3,080
BEAELFEI AR Decrease {increase) in financial assets designated at fair

ZERMAE(RL) B value through profit or loss 10,479 {15,016)
FEERE R R EST R AR Decrease in creditors and accrued charges (97,617) {12,054)
LEESZHRE Cash generated from operations 37,988 56,472
HIEGEIRE ZRBMA Dividend income from investments held for trading 1,434 1,091
EHEFEH XA Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (10,165) (8,961)
H bR AR Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (6,239) (9,744)
Efib [ IR 6 Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded 2,840 385
MERBEMGZRFE Net cash from operating activities 25,858 39,243
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #&Z2008F 3831 B 1L FH
2008 2007
Bt & TR FHT
NOTES HK$/000 HK$'000
RAESRER Cash flows from investing activities
RREATER(BRT Repayment from (advances to)
HMEAL) related parties 17,196 {17,196)
R - BB N Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fi8 ¥R plant and equipment 685 9
B H 8 Interest received 4,342 1,468
BEME - BERRE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment {48,593} (59,675}
Bt EAHRE Prepaid lease payments made {48,550) -
2 U A% ) R AR.S Dividend received from an associate - 2,114
WEBH B Al Acquisition of subsidiaries 36 - 1,310
WL REL Payment of deposit for acquisition
EE TR of land use rights - (14,711)
REERRZIRE Investment in an associate - {7,000)
HBEIEEDR Purchase of invesiment properties - (813
HEH B A Disposal of a subsidiary 38 - (478)
HHREEFAZRERE Net cash used in investing activities {(74,920) {(94,972)
REEEE R Cash flows from financing activities
HHERRAZREFE Net cash inflow from short term loans 56,867 104,511
IBRITER Bank loan raised 50,000 -
ERERBEEADERR Net cash inflow from trust receipts
FIBFERL R IEIER and import loans and loans related to
ERzHEFRA bills discounted with recourse 18,037 32,561
TR ERAA Net cash inflow (outflow) from debt
(M) 3m factoring loans 11,853 (28,349)
EITEMREm ST Proceeds from issue of shares upon
Bin 2 Br{8saR exercise of share options 3,303 26,253
@SS HIRHEITE Capital contribution from minority :
shareholders of a subsidiary 626 20,499
EE RS Dividends paid (56,846) (57.,201)
EfRITREAMERFE Interest on bank and other
horrowings paid (47,590) (26,975)
BEESEERAEEA Repurchases of shares including
hrokerage expenses (7,748) (4,325)
ERITER Repayment of bank loan (1,222) -
BEIDBEECREFH Net cash from financing activities 27,280 66,974
BHERESSFEZ (L) Net{decrease) increase in cash
by ] and cash equivaleats (21,782) 11,245
ENRERREEE Cash and cash eguivalents
&5 at beginning of the year 90,679 79,434
FRBRSRASEHEHSH Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 68,897 90,679
K&k : Represented by:
RITHEFRRES Bank balances and cash 77,068 92,401
RITEX Bank overdrafts (8,171) (1,722)
68,897 90,679
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 88 %2008F3831 AL F T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& A I M EE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of a wide range of electronic
products and securities trading.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs"}, amendment, or Interpreiations
("INTs") (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "new
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are effective for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning 1 April 2007,
The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
of prior accounting years are prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Capital disclosures” and HKFRS
7 "Financial instruments: Disclosures” retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under
the requirements of HKAS 32 "Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation” has been removed and
the refevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has
been presented for the first time in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
{Amendments)
HKFRS 2 {Amendment)
HKFRS 3 {Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)* - INT 12

HK(IFRIC) - INT 13

HK(IFRIC) - INT 14

Presentation of financial statements '

Borrowing costs !
Consolidated and separate financial statements 2
Puttabte financial instruments
and obligations arising
on liguidation '
Vesting conditicns and cancellations !

Business combinations ?

Operating segments !
Service concession arrangements 3

Customer loyalty programmes #
HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset,

minimum funding requirements
and their interaction 3

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 lanuary 2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2009.

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2008.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2008.

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WF LI 1 ﬁ S%ﬁ H.J‘ i}ill

For the year ended 31 March 2008 8852008 F3A1 AL FE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting treatment for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reperting period beginning on or after 1
July 2009. HKAS 27 {Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of controi, which will
be accounted for as equity transactions. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new or revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results or financial
position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicahle
disclosures required by the Rules Gowverning the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so0 as to
obtain benefits from its activities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation ~ continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Acquisition of additional interesis of subsidiaries does not
fall within the definition of business combination under
HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” as the acquisition does
not result in a change in control. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the carrying amount of assets and
liahilities of the subsidiary attributable to the additional
interest acquired is recognised as goodwill.

All intra-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses within the Group are eliminated on
consclidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consalidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minarity in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instrumenzs issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acgquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acguiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Business combinations — continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent tiabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised,

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date
is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant
acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 April 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be transferred to
the accumulated profits at the time when the business to
which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
of net assets and operations of another entity after 1
April 2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from
1 April 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).




NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ 4 B 2 S

For the year ended 31 March 2008 &ZF 2008438310 1LFE

FEEHEE - #

[ I |
R2005E1F1H88 7 6 RKIBATEE
i O RW0SEI AR 2B W B
ERMESESE DEWEMRNEDR
ZEAPRUBEREARHEBART
BAEE BABERLAAMBAFEMRE
EHEMER - AHEBRERAERMT
] BaH i EE BN -

WREMBARMELEDEREF ZHE
BRESBRERHRROFAZN -

HBARENS WERELAESS
AETHBRETERERBRAEZE
HEREESEU S HEELHIM
Al- BENABB L REELEUES
FRAGHKBTAMEMTRELRE
R (B B A BB E - AR BT AEE
TWEMELBEMS HoERE
ZHREELBUERZMBFRER
MBlE - ERGELBEM 2T
BERIREZEMREER  HES
BEEAsEERIEEVROEL
EEEBRREHE BOUZBEMLAS
BEZHREEARAEERLPSEEZ
BURNEBEE - TABRRESDA
REGRBREEER -BEAED
BTERTREMED -

HEhERERGELREUES - £E8
EEHEREMAMSBESAFABGEE
BRAXEHY -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Goodwill - continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business
at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwili
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subseguent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Interest in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabitities of associates are
incorporated in these consclidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liakilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Revenue recognition - continued

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
when the Group's right to receive payment has been
established.

Commission income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost or revalued
amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accurnulated impairment losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluation of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September 1995, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these
assets was credited to the other property revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets will
be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed
the balance, if any, on the other property revaiuation
reserve relating 1o a previous revaluation of the same
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred
to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment — continued
Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all development
expenditure and other direct costs attributable 1o such
project. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until completion of construction. On completion of
construction, the assets are transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong
Kong is depreciated over forty years on a straight line
basis after taking into account of the estimated residual
value, The cost of leasehold properties cutside Hong Kong
is amortised over a peripd of fifty years or, where shorter,
the remaining term of the leases on a straight line basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress and leasehold properties over their estimated
useful lives using the reducing balance method.

The land and buildings elemenis of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
ireated as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the
lease payments can be made reliahly, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item} is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

I
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
mode!. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon dispasal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Transfer to investment property will be made only when
there is a change in use, evidenced by an end of owner-
occupation for a transfer from owner-occupied property to
investment property; or a commencement of an operating
{ease to another party for a transfer from property for
sale to investment property. For a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property that will be
carried at fair value, the difference at that date between
the carrying amount of the property and its fair value is
credited to the other property revaluation reserve. For
a transfer from property for sale to investment property
that will be carried at fair value, the difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amaount is recognised in profit or loss.

Annual Report 2008 8 51




NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 0 B it B E

For the year ended 31 March 2008 8 E2008%3A31 81L&

3. FESHEE - &

eRMTIA
FEERBRATIAANBX 2N
hrEREGsEEANREEERSE
ERsRAB -SRAERSRAR
VS ELTEFR WHEERTER
RERERARREBELOFEIABY
ZEREERSCBRAMAN ZHERES
TSRA R EHAN G AL
HEeRBESSRATRERERT
F)c WHRATEFABRIERE
EGSRAEAsEERHRSRA
BP B R FI S S 1R BE SR -

EHRAE
FREzaRAESR=ERR &
HRAOTFEAABRZERMEE H
RREUZTHARTELERREE -
AR —BRAFABASLEZERA
ENRER R R ER NP ER - A
—RAABARLEEARTERE
HMAPIRTRRARNEE. S HA
ERASLE -

R F 4

REFELIDHESHEEZEBHEN
AREEHEEERSMEWAZ % -
TREAEATERZBSRAEMNG
EMERER (BN ERA BB
Hitst R RBEWRA (BERAXFE
WHEREBEBINEBE X8
RE 2 T HL fth 32 8 o 47 A ) EfTTTPE R
IR -

[T AZBATIRITIR P R E L5
BoMZEHATANAREZER
HERN BEPZFRBARKIER
ERFEEIIAR -

52 starlight International Holdings Ltd BB ER A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES - continued
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financiat assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial labilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All reqgular way purchases or sales
of financial asseis are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financiai assets at fair value
through profit or loss, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.
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3. FTEHEHEE — #A 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
tRMTH -3 Financial instruments - continued
ETHTE - & Financial assets — continued
ERAFEHFARBZERAE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories including financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition.

ATERAESRAARERER

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
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it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

CREBE (BHEEI2EREERM) A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
AR ERGEEEELCFEHEFT AR trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
- or loss upon initial recognition if:
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such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

RETEHHTRABEREN the financial asset forms part of a group of
RAEMERMASREELE financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
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is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments. Recognition and measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss — continued
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including debtors, deposits, bank balances and cash,
amounts due from related parties and amounts due from
associates) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below),

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined 1o be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss (see accounting policy an impairment loss on financial
assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
betow).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
ot prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

Far all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty; default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or it becomning probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
arganisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables,

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated {future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
atlowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recegnised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recagnised directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities generally
include other financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amount due
to an associate, bank overdrafts and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify
for hedge accounting

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and recognise a collateralised borrowing for
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is gischarged, canceliled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settied share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share aption reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Share-based payment transactions - continued
Equity-settied share-based payment transactions -
continued

Share options granted to employees - continued

For share options granted to employees on or before
7 November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002
and vested before 1 April 2005, the financial impact of
share options granted is not recorded in the consolidated
financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in respect of the value of options
granted. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the peried in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight line basis over its useful life on the same basis
as intangible assets acquired separately, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted-
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all further costs to completion
and costs to be incurred in selling and distribution.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. Hf the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the correspanding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Leases - continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight line basis.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated incame statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency {i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies - continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Xong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates

HEB(WE)RBAEXNETBEIIN for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly

SERREE) ZEELEZERLE during the period, in which case, the exchange rates

BN R EE SRR o prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit ar loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

BEEANHN Retirement benefits schemes
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Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme
or the Mandatory Provident Fund {"MPF") Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to contributions.

TR EEEZ2TEXRR KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

EERAMEIAMAZAEDEHREY In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
BiEh AR EBHARELNRR which are described in note 3, the directors of the
EmpREREERAM2EEEE Company are required to make estimates and assumptions

Hisit RRE - BH AT REMERR
DE#B@E#@&E&&E{M&E}%#@WZ
B 2 - TERRAS AE T [ 1 3% &
&5t e

FREGAT RHB RIS AT
e - MBS RIA G AL ER
A HRRE - BIZE A ERTREER
mEBEITFRAR RARREARM A
TR ERfR] Bk SR B 3R o

BBARZ EERS - URREHED
CHENGEL: SIS 3 X
BRAR THGRHT—HBFE
GEAMEHMFREANE HE
mF -

about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects hoth
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical
conditions and saleability of inventories at each balance
sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for such finished goods and
consumables based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goadwiil is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March
2008, the carrying amounts of goodwill is HK$27,671,000,
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in note 18.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2008, no deferred tax asset was
recognised in the Group’s batance sheet in relation to
the estimated unused tax losses of HK$132,592,000
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. in cases where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than
expected, a material recognition or reversal of deferred
tax asset may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
such a recognition takes place.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@)

Business segments

The Group is organised into two operatlng
divisions, namely design, manufacture and sale of
electronic products and securities trading. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information. The Group has
one more operating division, namely property
development, in both years. However, the Group
did not earn any turnover from this division and
that the segment results, assets and liabilities of
this division are insignificant. Accordingly, segment
information in respect of the property development
division is not presented. Such information included
in note 6{a) of the Group's annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 is
now considered as “unallocated” below.

(i} An analysis of the Group’s turnover, which

HormT represents sales of goods, and results by
business segments is as follows:
BRYER
Rt Wi
B#eE
Design,
manufacture
and sale of BHER
electronic Securities a8
products trading  Consolidated
TR THx FHR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE2008FE3H318  Year ended 31 March 2008
L5 E
gxEg TURNOVER 2,199,033 - 2,199,033
aE N SEGMENT RESULTS 97,406 {6,110) 91,296
Fl2YA Interest income 4,342
FARWA Unallocated income 3,773
RABERE Unallocated expenses {15,979)
BEMEZLFME  Increase in fair value of
B investment properties 27,531
HEEHERBAT  Gain on deemed partial disposal
ER D HE 2 2 S F of a subsidiary 279
mERAK Finance costs {47,590)
FE{EEERATMM  Share of profits of associates 373 - 373
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5. SXBEH - & 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(a) HETE-& (a)  Business segments — continued
RFER
i WE
A=
Design,
manufacture
and sale of BHER
electronic Securities &5
products trading  Consolidated
TET FHET FHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B B AT FI Profit before taxation 64,025
BE Taxation {18,531)
REFRF Profit for the year 45,494
Hit& % OTHER INFCRMATICN
HEME  BR Additions of property,

R plant and eguipment 48,593 - 48,593

EQRENEBRY Amortisation of product

development costs 347 - 347
EAEERE Prepaid lease payments made 48,550 - 48,550
ERBEFRED Release of prepaid lease

payments 1,070 - 1,070
¥ -EER Depreciation of property,

HENE plant and equipment 55,198 - 55,198
SREE Allowance for doubtfu! debts 5,961 - 5,961
HERRFH TE Net allowance for obsolete and

BEFE slow-moving inventories 1,648 - 1,648
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For the year ended 3t March 2008 $E2008F3A31 S EHE

5.

aB|EH - # 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(a) %EBSE -3 (a)  Business segments — continued
RTER
Wit - B
E&s
Design,
manufacture
and sale of 2RAN
electronic  Securities ab
products trading Consolidated
TiET FHExL THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2007%3H8318  Year ended 31 March 2007

HFE
HEE TURNOVER 2,434,241 - 2,434,241
T | SEGMENT RESULTS 136,149 7.736 143,885
FEBA Interest income 1,468
ESBREA Unallocated income 5,815
RARMAT Unaflocated expenses (19,365)
fEHEREY Impairment loss recognised in respect

SR s of available-for-sale investments (150)
EBEMELLT Increase in fair value of

EEEmD investment properties 3,322
WAL HENE  Gain on deemed partial disposal

YNEIWE: ¥ of a subsidiary 10,194
HeERBATZHH  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 99
REMT Finance costs {26,975)
FEAGES & D R)RF Share of profits of associates 1,613 - 1,613
B B B3 ) Profit before taxation 119,906
BR Taxation (9,715)
FEERF Profit for the year 110,191
RibRH OTHER INFORMATION
BEDE  BE Additions of property, plant

BB and equipment 63,383 - 63,383
ExSRUTERY Amortisation of product

development costs 346 - 346
EARE N s L T Release of prepaid lease payments 121 - 121
WE - WERRE Depreciation of property, plant

e and equipment 52,542 - 52,542
HEME - BER Loss on disposal of property,

EHsEHR plant and equipment 155 - 155
FEREG Allowance for doubtful debts 4,489 - 4,489
BERRHZTH Net allowance for obsolete

BHFR and slow-moving inventories 4,057 - 4,057
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5.

aRER - &
(a) HBoE - X

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
{a) Business segments — continued

(ii) EAEBHERESHEZE (i} An analysis of the Group’s consolidated
SEEAMRSWWMT balance sheet by business segments is as
follows:
BFER
RE - HB
B#s
Design,
manufacture
and sale of BHER
electronic  Securities =14
products trading Consolidated
FiBT FERL FRL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F2008%3H8318 At 31 March 2008
BnE ASSETS
SEAE Segment assets 1,216,181 26,684 1,242,865
PEIEME SN FIHEZE Interest in associates 8,573 - 8,573
KRB LEIEE Unallocated corporate assets 222,872
BITREE Consolidated total assets 1,474,310
1=Fi | LIABILITIES
SEAE Segment liabilities 176,082 518 176,600
s X NI =R Unallocated corporate liabilities 497,934
BB A Consalidated total liabilities 674,534
R200763H318 At 31 March 2007
BE ASSETS
STHEE Segment assets 1,181,597 44,296 1,225,803
FE{NES S DNEEZE  Interest in associates 8,200 - 8,200
KRABRABIEE Unallocated corporate assets 198,905
SEHEEE Consolidated total assets 1,432,998
a1 LIABILITIES
SHAafE Segment liabilities 275,389 438 275,827
FAREAREH Unallocated corporate liabilities 344,821
EitEBam Consolidated total liabilities 620,648

Starfight International Holdings Ltd A EIEM AR 28




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 4 B 25 985 W

For the year ended 31 March 2008 8E20083A31 B &M

5. SHEHR - # 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
by HEZT {b)  Geographical segments

0} AEEEFERRET - ® (i An analysis of the Group's turnover in

ERHEZHERRE respect of design, manufacture and sale of

FHREEMigE 52 electronic products by geographical markets

ST based on location of customers is as follows:

2008 2007

THBR FHEL

HiK$ 000 HK$'000

=M North America 1,348,799 1,579,914

B Europe 782,738 685,520

FE Hong Kong 17,463 54,295

hEXE Mainland China 422 6,723

BERERH Japan and Korea 4,221 1,336

HAER Other countries 45,390 106,453

2,199,033 2,434,241

iy DBEERAFENZ (i)  An analysis of the carrying amount of

FEEEEEMTHER segment assets and capital additions

BlozairamT analysed by the geographical areas in which

the assets are lacated is as follows:

AREECREE
Carrying amount RA®m
of segment assets Capital additions
2008 2007 2008 2007
FER FER TR FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& Heng Kong 310,903 643,381 28,226 36,408
Bl North America 424,317 333,234 3,853 6,689
RERARE Mainland China 426,183 214,431 16,514 20,281
HitER Other countries 55,360 10,922 - 5
1,216,763 1,201,968 48,593 63,383
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6. Hfttlg A 6.  OTHER INCOME
2008 2007
FHxT FHEL
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Hit W ABIE : Other income comprises:
[RE T Claims received 148 9
itk Commission 6,206 10,456
BIEEHIREZRE W Dividend income from investments
hetd-for-trading 1,434 1,091
HE N 25 - R Exchange gain, net 1,048 -
HEYE  BREREREC W Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 10 -
¥ 225 Interest income 4,342 1,468
AWt s Rental income {note) 3,773 5,815
S Repairing income 1,263 3,450
B S e 2% Sale of scrap materials 2,275 1,953
M Sundry 1,695 1,467
22,194 25,709
B - 143,000 5T (20074 : 42,0005& Note: Outgoings of HK$143,000 {2007: HK$42,000) were

7L) A FE & Uk 2 5 #3.630,000/ 7T
(20074 : 5,773,000/ ) FREE S >

incurred resulting in net rental income of HK$3,630,000
{2007: HK$5,773,000).

M-
7. RERD 7. FINANCE COSTS
2008 2007
TR FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
2 Interest on
—SERZEBE - barrowings wholly repayable
within five years 40,586 25,656
-BRREHPORES ~ margin accounts and short term
DA EBEK loans from securities brokers - 6
BRFREAIRIEA Factoring charges 7,004 1,313
47,590 26,975
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #:Z2008F3 318 LFE

Tl 522,227,000 7T ( 20074 -
3,361,0008 70) B AR AT 38312,000
JETT (20074 @ 2,566,000/ 7T) °
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8. BRBEGA 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2008 2007
FER FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B AR R Z AT H BNk Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:
ESERANEE Amortisation of product development costs 347 346
AT S Auditors’ remuneration
—EFE - current year 3,529 3,774
- BEERLRESH - underprovision in prior years 515 -
M - mERIERE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 55,198 52,542
HIELEME 2 BERSR Impairment loss on properties for sale
(BIEHERE) (included in cost of sales) - 356
HEME - BREREEER Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - 155
EFEFrgglnaR Minimum lease payments under
Bedh operating leases in respect
of rented premises 6,077 4,390
R K Allowance for doubtful debts 5,961 4,489
PR R i R BB Net allowance far absolete and
slow-moving inventories 1,648 4,057
EBEREZR Release of prepaid lease payments 1,070 121
MAERHEBRE Research and development costs 43,614 36,761
BINK  BIEREMNE Staff costs including directors’
(fiaE) remuneration (note) 159,471 157,299
A ZERAIRFEBREBHRENS Note: The staff costs for the year included retirement

henefits scheme contributions of HK$2,227,000 (2007
HK$3,361,000) and share-based payments of HK$312,000
{2007: HK$2,566,000).
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9. HEIFIEREAME 9.
FREMEATEESHMEFHENOT:

DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the
directors are as follows:

BE2008F3A3BLEE For the year ended 31 March 2008
R
Hirsg
EAER BEFH
Salaries HPERER HEHR
and other Performance  Retirement
short term related benefits HeRE
¥B&  employee incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
THT TER FHT T FTHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BOTES Executive directors:
! EJE e tau Sak Hong, Philip 50 8,009 268 208 8,535
| BHE Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 50 1,388 87 74 1,599
Blthik Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 50 1,257 76 67 1,450
FRTEE: Non-executive director:
‘ PRiEm Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 50 20 - - 70
! RUEHITES ! Independent non-executive
directors:
] 24 Ho Hau Chong, Norman 50 - - - 50
B Chan Chak Chung 50 - - - 50
HER Chuck Winston Calptor 50 - - - 50
350 10,674 431 349 11,804
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q, EELREEME — -] 9, DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS —
continued
HE007E3ANALEEE For the year ended 31 March 2007
WM
A 5E
EERH RREH
Salaries HH AT FEIER
and other  Performance Retirement
short term related benefits [k %
ik employee incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
TART THT TR TR THIT

HK$'000 HK$°'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000

WTES ! Executive directors:

Bl Lau Sak Hong, Philip 50 8,183 286 205 8,724

EJE YA Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 50 1,360 94 73 1,577

lihim Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 50 1,233 83 66 1,432

EROTRD Non-executive director;

(1] Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 50 - - - 50

RUFHTES ! Independent non-executive

directors:

FE# Ho Hau Chong, Norman 50 - - - 50

BRE Chan Chak Chung 50 - - - 50

EFHR Chuck Winston Calptor 50 - - - 50
350 10,776 463 344 11,933

BRERNRADEBETIAARER The performance related incentive payments are

FAEMEZF2008F3ANBULERFZR determined by the performance of the individual and the

R EREE N TRE - Group's performance and profitability for the two years

ended 31 March 2008.
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9, EELEAMNES - & 9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS —
continued
Y= Employees
FEEZERSHEMZALTRIEIS The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
(2007 : 3B ) EH  FHESHa > three (2007: three) directors, details of whose
FHEORIERE - E#25 (20075 ¢ remuneration are set out above. The emoluments of the
2RV ESEFEMESZMENT - remaining two (2007 two} highest paid employees are as
. follows:
2008 2007
FAET FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
¥k H e Salaries and other short term
EBRF employee benefits 3,072 2,509
SRR EEE R Performance related incentive payments 148 606
RREREEIERR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 24 24
AL EEEN Share-based payments - 240
3,244 3,379
HEESREZEHEHNT Emoluments of these employees were within the following
bands:
wEAH
Number of employees
2008 2007
1,000,001%7c— 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1 1
1,500,008 —2,000,0008 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 1
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10. R 10.  TAXATION
2008 2007
FBR FHET
HK$'000 HK$"000
BEZH (ER) B The charge {credit) comprises:
EEFFHR Hong Kong Profits Tax
AEEHIE Current year 15,843 4,275
AR E B RE IR Overprovision in prior years (N (312
15,836 3,963
HipRER 2 HIE Taxation in other jurisdictions
AEF IR Current year 2,058 3,589
LAETFE LR EBE Underprovision in prior years 9,328 1,472
11,386 5,061
BHETE (Ff31) Deferred taxation {note 31) (8,691} 691
bk Taxation 18,531 9,715
EAFEBUAFERE ZEHERRA Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2007:
FIE R £17.5% (20075F  17.5% ) 5t 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
ﬁ ]
HipAAE 2 BB NIRERNRNZE 2 Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
BIREHHE-BEERZLIRER rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. The
TEARRNEXEFRAEAEER underprovision in prior years mainly arise from a
MiEE o Bl B EL =2004F R2005F3 A settlement of corporate tax audit with the Canada
SIBLREENEARTEZWAS Revenue Agency related to allocation of income by a
RETCEHEEGFEE ZSF subsidiary of the Group between Canada and Hong Kong
ErRBEGTRETH - for the two years ended 31 March 2004 and 2005. The

tax audits are now closed for these years.
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10.

BHE - &

R2007F3816R - PEARENE
(TrEDBEETEEREFEHES $63
FEGTFEAREXNBEEAEHRE
(T# 8l - R2007E12868 - F &
BERAGH B EZERER - FEZE
EREESSTHEBETTIERBR
Al Z H R H2008F1A1H EH3I3%NK
B25% MEFEFTE1N2REREREZ
TPEKBRGME - I ER2008F
1TAVREMNSFAREMBINELS% - |
AEEEREESNNAMEHEER
MzAZRKETERHAEEERER
=3

A4 [ B L5 & W38 R R B BT
EHHHEDT :

10.

TAXATION - continued

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China
{"PRC”) government promulgated the law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “"New Law"} by Order No. 63 of
the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations
of the New lLaw. The New Law and Implementation
Regulations will change the tax rate frem 33% to 25%
for certain of the Group's PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008. For those PRC subsidiaries enjoying privilege rate
of 12%, the new tax rate is progressively increasing to
25% over five years from 1 January 2008. The adjustment
of tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective
periods when the asset is realised or the liability is settled
does not have any significant impact to the Group.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consclidated income statement as
follows:

2008 2007
FEx T
HK$'000 HK$'000
i Bt A AR B Profit before taxation 64,025 119,806
BAMAMEERE17.5% Tax at the domestic income tax
(20074 :17.5%) & H 2 HEA rate of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) 11,204 20,984
FEEBE DT EEZBIAR Tax effect of share of results of associates 65 282
T HRRAHHIEE Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for taxation purposes 1,626 2,411
BEFHUREEBEEE Tax effect of income that is not taxable
for taxation purposes (2,881) (2,270}
REMBGEREEREE 2 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
MBLRTRBMRzE operating in other jurisdictions (1,233) (2,392)
=EIVBERRRARE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 5,792 2,048
BRI RER B Tax effect of utitisation of tax losses
RSB IEHEE previously not recognised (5,265) (7,613)
— XKW RFREBE Effect of tax exemption granted
BMRsRE (M) to a subsidiary {note) (1,908) (3,569)
BEIEREADIBREE Underprovision in prior years 9,321 1,160
Hib Cthers 1,810 (1,326)
EEFHE Taxation for the year 18,531 9,715
it BWMBLRREREREARZEM Note: The subsidiary is exempted from taxation in other
ERPERERKAREEZH jurisdiction pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
e in that jurisdiction,
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11. RE
ER o KEER007FERGEAASIEH
LR EEE-RREEERLRLS

11.

DIVIDENDS
During the year, scrip alternative was offered in respect of
the 2007 final dividend. The scrip alternative was accepted

BE - WAOT by the shareholders, as follows:
HK$
FHx
B8 - Dividends:
B& Cash 18,908
CARR R RIR IR Scrip alternative 8,769
27,677

EEEATERENEE2008F3H31
AtFEZKERESRESM (2007
FoRANBARECIEERS) SR

The directors have resolved not to recommend a final
dividend, for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: final
scrip dividend with a cash option of HK3.5 cents per

3.5% ) - share).

12. SREF 12.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
BREARANESERFNITEEBUT The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
AHtH is based on the following data:

2008 2007
S ¥ FHET
HK$'000 HK$000
R HBRERRREEF Earnings attributable to shareholders
e NG e of the Company for the purposes
of basic and diluted earnings per share 45,914 105,196
Number of shares
2008 2007
RitHBREXREF Weighted average number of
ZHIEERIRIGEA shares for the purpases of
basic earnings per share 790,246,143 762,850,032
FERRHERR A ERBE Effect of dilutive potential shares
R fn 2 s relating to share options 8,080,944 16,681,079
AHTHEREHAT Weighted average number of shares
ZhEF5AR {7 8 8 for the purposes of
diluted earnings per share 798,327,087 779,531,111
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #&E2008F3A31 0 1L FE
13. BREYX 13. [INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2008 2007
T#x FH#ET
HK$:000 HK$'000
BEWMEL ATE: Fair value of investment properties:
REH At beginning of the year 81,121 76,500
e Additions - 813
HEOFELEDSE Transferred from properties for sale - 486
DAEEE M Increase in fair value 27.531 3,322
REEB At end of the year 108,652 81,121
BEMEERERE The carrying amount of investment
properties comprises;
EEALLRGEHESR Long leases in Hong Kong 94,000 68,060
EEELSNARBANES Long leases outside Hong Kong 14,652 13,061
108,652 81,121
EEMBEEWEZRTFEDBIRESR The fair vatues of the Group’s investment properties have
EEYEBEZBYSEEEREGE been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
RSN BAETHRESEEMT & on the balance sheet date by an independent qualified
BREASSESE SOhEHGEA professional valuer not connected with the Group.
BBl BB - Z{EFEME The valuer has appropriate qualifications and recent
EZREMETIBEHEREEH - experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the

relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

FEANEEHROFERAREEZSHE All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
FEERG 7 2HDEESREUARTE leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
FAEEREE - CAEIEIEEDE - are measured using the fair value model and are
2008538318  ZEWEERZ classified and accounted for as investment properties.
i @ 18 /5108,652,0005 7T { 20074 - As at 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of such
81,121,000 L) - property interests amounted to HK$108,652,000 {2007:

HK$81,121,000).
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14. Y% EERSRE 14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
il - &R
Ritfa
Furniture,
ERyEx  REER fixtures SE HERBE ERIE
Leasehold  Computer and Motor  Plant and Construction it
properties equipment equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
Fi#n TAL TiEr T#rn TEL Fhn TiEn
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
HAELME COST OR VALUATION
B2006%F4A1R AL April 2006 119,855 22,397 103,057 15,353 467,311 - 727,973
BRAB Cuirency realignment - 84 {50) - 17 - 51
&R Additions 78 5,005 3,208 1,783 49,311 - 59,675
WHERRLE Acquisition of subsidiaries - 614 1,200 - 1,894 - 3,708
AREEfFLENE Transfer from properties
for sale 611 - - - - - 611
ief = Disposal - - - {400) (609) - (1,009
BERRLRE Disposal of a subsidiary - {397} {1,453) - (14,615) - {16,465)
R2007E38 1A At 31 March 2007 120,544 27,703 106,252 16,736 503,309 - 774,544
BHRS Currency realignment - ] ] - 48 - 54
&R Additions - 1,666 5,465 729 40,313 a9 48,593
irf e Dispasal (168) - {459) {2,077) - - {2,704)
#2008F3 4310 At 31 March 2008 120,376 29312 111,262 15,388 543,670 419 820,487
2 Comprising:
RAE At cast 90,976 29372 111,262 15,388 543,670 419 791,087
ERE-1991F At valuation - 1991 29,400 - - - - - 29,400
120,376 29,372 111,262 15,388 543,670 415 820,487
ik DEPRECIATION
#2006%4 518 At 1 April 2006 18,120 14,679 82,702 12,835 304,903 - 433,239
EXEz Currency realignment - 7 (6) - 14 - 15
FERE Provided for the year 1,268 2,863 4,810 792 41,809 - 52,542
hERRE Eliminated en disposal - - - (268) {577) - {845)
LENBRTEES Eliminated on disposal
of a subsidiary - (340) {1,294) - (14,615} - (16,249}
R2007E374318 At 31 March 2007 20,388 17,209 86,212 13,359 331,534 - 468,702
EiRE Currency realignment - 3 - - 38 - 41
RENE Provided far the year 2,285 2,580 4,521 776 45,036 - 55,198
HERE S Eliminated on disposal 3) - {50) {1,936) - - (2,029
1200830318 At 31 March 2008 22,670 19,792 90,643 12,199 376,608 - 521,912
BEH CARRYING VALUES
H#2008F38318 At 31 March 2008 57,706 9,580 20,619 3,189 167,062 419 298,575
H007EIANA At 31 March 2007 100,150 10,494 20,040 3377 171,775 - 305,842
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14. PE BEREH — K 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued
ERAMMABASHRAENESERE The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong
T REENBHE FEEEDSR Kong, which included prepaid lease payments that cannot
LEAESGHBEIRIOEHENERE be allocated reliably between the land and building
BRI EBAENGE THBUANMBER elements, is depreciated over forty years and after taking
EVRUESEREOFN (MERE into account of the estimated residual value. The cost of
FE) AR ERTEE - teasehold properties outside Hong Kong is amortised over

a period of fifty years or, where shorter, the remaining

term of the leases on a straight line basis.

HitsE BEERREREGRA Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other

AEBEESERETEREUARE property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful

HEA - FHSEENT : lives, using the reducing balance method at the following
rates per annum:

BiEEE 25% Computer equipment 25%

Bl EARRE 10 — 25% Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 25%

RE 20 — 25% Motor vehicles 20 -25%

BE R ks 15 — 30% Plant and machinery 15 - 30%

TEEDEZREERKE The carrying value of the leasehold properties shown
above comprises:

2008 2007

FHER THET

HK$°000 HK$'000

HERNRBHEOESA Long leases in Hong Kong 27,022 27,440

EEASMNAPHENER Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 70,684 72,716

97,706 100,156

HEDEMFRIGEHBEOHTR
1991 FFABHEREEZ AMMHET
LBERK - FEESHEESHENE
16 FEOABRE MM EETHERAE
EEGMEsBEHRS  HtEA
E—SEERBEEDE-HEEPER
2008%3 A31 8 IRMEE 427,022,000
7C (20074 : 27,440,000/ 7T) AL &
ERAFFERRATABEBERYINE -
HEMEMN00BEIENAZER R
EH ¥ #1420,920,000/# 7T ( 20074 ¢
21,286,000 ) »
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The valuation of leasehold properties was carried out by
a firm of independent professional valuers in 1991 on an
open market value for existing use basis. The Group has
adopted the transitional relief provided by paragraph 80A
of HKAS 16 from the requirement to make revaluation on
a regular basis of the Group’s leasehold properties and,
accordingly, no further revaluation of leasehold properties
will be carried out. Had these leasehold properties with
a carrying amount at 31 March 2008 of HK$27,022,000
{2007: HK$27,440,000) been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, the carrying vatue of the leasehold properties at 31
March 2008 would have been stated at HK$20,920,000
{2007: HK$21,286,000).
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15.

16.

B EEsE 15.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
RE7ENBEDREAE The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
2008 2007
FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRI AR BEELSS Leasehold land held under medium
ZHET term leases outside Hong Kong 66,448 4,257
HABENDIE Analysed for reporting purposes as:
mMENEE Current asset 1,386 121
EREEE Non-current asset 65,062 4,136
66,448 4,257
EaREAR 16. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS
THIT
HK$000
AR E CosT
2006F4 518 - 2007638318 At 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007
200838318 and 31 March 2008 1,732
ma AMORTISATION
20064818 At 1 April 2006 432
FEMNR Charge for the year 346
H200753A3E At 31 March 2007 778
£ F R Charge for the year 347
2008838318 At 31 March 2008 1,125
BREE CARRYING VALUE
H2008%3831R At 31 March 2008 607
F2007%3 8318 At 31 March 2007 954
EmBRKSAERESSFHE - Product development costs are amortised over a period of

five years on a straight line basis.
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17. B8 17.  GOODWILL
FEL
HK$ 000
A CosT
R2006F4H1 8 At 1 April 2006 9,149
W RE B B 2 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 37,934
Wi AR B D S EIMEL Deemed acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 531
M Fd S 2 R Disposal of a subsidiary (19,121)
WiRZ A B o R R0 Deemed partiai disposal of a subsidiary {2,999)
200743 H318 At 31 March 2007 25,494
AR 2 BULRE O A R R s Deemed acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 2,183
WAL EHB LIS NER Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary (6)
H2008%3831H At 31 March 2008 27,671
BHRzZEEMAFERTIMRHE8 - Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in note 18.
18. WEEREMNR 18.  IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

M sk ME  FAERUEESHE
EBRBRSTHERNTEFRN - HA
BRAHAGE HWo1V/MBEEBC#®
SEERARZELEM(RGE
SEMN]) O REWRRI - -HER
HEETERERZHB 28 75l
8,111,000 7L & 17,991,000 T
(20074 : 8,111,000 7L 5.15,814,000
AEIT) o

RS ECEG M W EF R
FEREERE FHEERAMMAEREY
TEBRRBRMERR - BRIEURF
ARAMBEERR AR FIR
BRARBAL SHEEBRE - AL
ERBRMEREHEBEREAL LR
SELEUNERBOFH -BER
AERBERAAEE - WAREE
MAZB2YHIRBEH REMZREE
EoliobilE-Sih AR

REFE SEHEBEEBRHRR
MERERLRSRERARTER
WERHEIEZHEERLS0%. 7 HEH -
Er{E A2 BhIBE 58% (20074 1 8% )
HRATERGREHUEFHES
REGELSEMZEEE YRE5H
HOFARRRENRSE-
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As explained in note 5, the Group uses business segments
as its primary segment for reporting segment information.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill as set
out in note 17 have been allocated to two cash generating
units {"CGUs"), including two subsidiaries in the design,
manufacture and sale of electronic products segment
ameunting to HK$8,111,000 and HK$17,991,000 {2007:
HK$8,111,000 and HK$15,814,000).

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. The
management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budget for the next year by the
management and projections extrapolated at 0% growth
rate for subsequent four years using a discount rate of
8% (2007: 8%). The value in use calculated by using the
discount rate is higher than the carrying amount of CGU,
accordingly, no impairment loss was considered necessary.
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10, BEIGEE& D IR 19.  INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
2008 2007
THRRT FHxT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REFERRIEERA - FF LT Cost of investment in associates, unlisted 13,576 13,576
FE{R YRR E 4 - OB Share of post-acquisition reserves,
(=84 AN net of dividend received (4,082) (4,455)
9,494 9,121
B DERAESRS Less: Impairment lasses recognised (921) (921}
8,573 8,200
FEHBERT 2HFEWOT Details of the Group's associaies are as follows:
b-3-1..1; 313
ERERES 2R /EHEBE g3 33
Form of Place of HRESEHE Attributable
BELAFER business registration/  Nominal value of equity interest  XBEK
Name of associate structure operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
ARPERTARRA  AfERE hE 800,000£ 7% 68.75% 68.75% HEBEREK
( [EE&ER]) Co-operative  PRC Us$800,000 (B FXH#) inactive
Beijing Commune Fair joint venture {see note below)
Electronics Co. Ltd.
("Beijing Commune”)
Danehill Investmenis BRARRE HEESE 7,000,000/ 7T 48.28% 48.28% HERR
{Holdings) Limited Limited Cayman HK$7,000,000 Investment holding
liability Islands
company
- gL SN YN BRAMLRT FE 500,000 30% 30% RARTER
(TE#]) Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 Trading in electronic
interferce Limited tiability products
{* Interforce”) company
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19.

EEREATER — A
g

BERE  EESERERE FREZHL
REES0%Z HMEE A - AREALRE
BHEREEHEHWE BEREHEN TS
7 M B H 3l - 5420028108 L EER
EINIEE RS Em SR RETR
HEARERER It REEOLEEER-
EEPHBRECEAERERFE21,0005
TAMEERE 2 GEE -

BEQLTHARABERSA -

REBMEQRZIEERAISEEZFTIRE
BEeARMESZ B3, 779,000% T
(20074 : 3,779,000/ 7T) °

FHTREREORZHBERBEE
WmH T

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES - continued
Note:

Under the agreement, during the life of the agreement, the
Group is entitled to share 50% of the profit or loss of Beijing
Commune and the Group does not have controlling interest in
the board of directors of Beijing Commune because it was the
power to appoint three out of six directors of Beijing Commune.
In October 2002, the business certificate of Beijing Commune
has been cancelled by the PRC government as the company did
not renew its business certificate. Beijing Commune became
inactive since then. An impairment loss of HK$921,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements to write off
the carrying amount of the investment.

The associates are indirectly held by the Company.
Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill
of HK$3,779,000 (2007 HK$3,779,000) arising on

acquisition of an associate in prior year.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associates is set out below:

2008 2007

FET TR

HK$'000 HK$'000

HESE Total assets 33,993 26,445
BEER Total liabilities (21,610) (15,327
REFE Net assets 12,383 11,118
EihEERE Share of net assets 5,715 5.342
WEE Turnover 190,117 214,417
FERHF Profit for the year 1,266 5,408
FE{GREE LB HFR Share of profits of associates 373 1,613
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20.

AHHEERE AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2008 2007
THER FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
e E s Equity securities
LA - WA Unlisted shares, at cost 26,690 26,690
B DERAEER Less: Impairment losses recognised (2.650) (2,650)
24,040 24,040
REZEN EHRD Listed shares outside Hong Kong,
RAFE at fair value 12 35
24,052 24,075
RPBRERINA - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
IEMENEE Non-current asset 24,052 24,075

REHZH AHEEIREZMAA LD
BRQRQFEIE ZFREZR
FERSZEERTEMBEAQEE

Ll IF £ TR R B EH B A ARSI AL
ABBMBEITZELTRAZLHEE -
HRAEQFEMGHBEELR  AQ
AEFRAREAIRAHARTE
BHZEREANBTEEARREANR
REEH -

TR AEHRTRERLEREE
BRI (REBIEMAR ~ & BlNet Plus
Company Limited ([Net Plus]) Z17%
(20074 - 17%) R AEHIE - BE
FEEEARMERSHERAESR
2.500,000:#% 7T - #2008%3A318 -
HESEFMBEAZGE 2K AR
HeERBHEREMNAEEREEE 7R
ATTYE B HNet Plusz 125 ~ BEE{E -

As at the balance sheet date, all listed shares included
in available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value.
Fair values of these investments have been determined by
reference to bid prices gquoted in active markets.

The above unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less
impairment loss at each balance sheet date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Included in unlisted equity securities was an investment

of 17% (2007: 17%) equity interest in Net Plus Company

Limited (“Net Plus”), a company engaged in investment
holding and provision of healthcare related services. An
impairment loss of HK$2,500,000 was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in prior years. At 31
March 2008, the directors reviewed its carrying amount
with reference to the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the investment
and considered that the carrying value of the interest in
Net Plus is recoverable.
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21, f4SRMIA ST ARDOTES  21.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS/FINANCIAL

ABEEEREE ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
BE Ak
Assets Liabilities
2008 2007 2008 2007
THRT TERL THT FAL
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$:000 HK$'000
iy HTARAIFEAA (i} Financial assets designated
BHz eREE at fair value through
profit or loss;
THEHZBEHERE - Buy-write certificates on:
-REE LT RRES - equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 1,606 10,728 - -
—-REFRMI LT - equity securities listed
LREEH outside Hong Kong 6,543 10,067 - -
8,149 20,795 - -
(i) IEERHATLR (i) Derivative {inancial instruments
ZOTHEGRIA nat designated as hedging
instruments:
} NEREE Foreign exchange option 120 480 - -
| WEEEI Lz A Options on equity securities
ErzEEE listed outside Hong Kong - - (518) (438)
120 480 (518} (438)
| 8,269 21,275 (518} (438)

WESHEERSRTANRE TN
BrEARTETA Bl FAS
| HAMBEETREATFESABRNY

EMAE-

The buy-write certificates contain embedded derivatives
which are not closely related to the host contracts,
accordingly, the entire combined contracts have been

designated at financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss.
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21. iﬁiﬁﬂlﬂ/}%iﬂﬁﬂ%zﬁ%‘f 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS/FINANCIAL
AlBBLREE — 3 ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS - continued
RITUBEAEEER - SEHTH On inception of the buy-write certificates, the strike price
MBRARHZITEE AR RRE of the underlying equity securities, maturity date and
H-REEERE RN BETHESE observation period would be determined. At the end
EERE AERESEHF o TESR of each observation period or on maturity of the buy-
TTHEHETER -HEEEHREZ write certificates, market price of the underlying equity
TERRITER BEFHEERY securities would be compared to the strike price. The buy-
BIFERHBSE A MEEPHEER write certificates would be terminated and settled in cash
ZHEBEEPETESE  HHEFEEEBU if the market price is higher than strike price. (The buy-
BRFERFED - write certificates would be settled in shares) if the market
price is lower than the strike price.
BEIEEE 2 2FENREBESHE The fair values of buy-write certificates are determined
MFTRAMREAEF2BE FBHR based on market prices quoted by securities brokers which
MERFHABAENE2THEMME - are determined based on inputs such as share price,
volatility, dividend yield of the underlying equity securities.
22. #H 22,  INVENTORIES
2008 2007
FER FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
[GES Raw materials 197,817 187,366
EHG Work in progress 11,893 14,646
RIAK G Finished goods 333,896 249,232
543,606 451,244

REFEE REASRERBEEASE Y
ZHEBRAE 664,663,000/ T (2007
£ : 1,946,605,000 7T) °

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the
consolidated inceme statement during the year amounted
to HK$1,664,663,000 (2007: HK$1,946,605,000).
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS

23, BWREDZ BeREMARE 23.  DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2008 2007
FHERT T #
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERESER Trade debtors 192,803 279,630
BHREBIEZES Deposits with securities brokers 19,657 11,708
BT HER Advances to suppliers 31,920 35,560
Ta{<h 3ooE B A FE U FRIE Prepayments and other receivables 24,645 16,806
269,025 343,704

REBEARUEZREFX (NERRERE)

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for

ZEREOWDT : doubtful debts at the balance sheet date is as follows:
2008 2007
FEr Ti&
HK$'000 HK$ 000
0—308 0 - 30 days 103,982 229,768
31—60H 31 - 60 days 38,261 11,950
61—90H 61 - 90 days 17,269 2,072
HBiEaos Quer 90 days 33,291 35,840
192,803 279,630

FREGTHEZEFPZBRESANT
30H E90F - REMNERHES A -
FEEERRABTEEERFZERHA
ERFTUEERE -

AEBEVEIEREREDAE
54,014,000 7T ( 20074 : 43,039,000
BRI ZERREA-RELSBHECH
H BREDEFREDREHERE -
AW EHEZEESFETMIER -

Starlight International Holdings Ltd F#EIEBRER 2 8

The Group allows an average credit period ranging
from 30 days to 90 days to its trade customers. Before
accepting any new customers, the management will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customer and define appropriate credit limits.

included in the Group's trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$54,014,000 (2007;
HK$43,039,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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23, EWER REERFASRE - & 23.

ERamesRazERESBERZE

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS - continued
The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but

gEothnT : not impaired is as follows:
2008 2007
THEA T
HK$ 000 HK$'000
31-60H 31 - 60 days 9,155 5818
31-908 61 — 90 days 11,568 1,381
#BiB90H Over 90 days 33,29 35,840
54,014 43,039

REERB2ERRESZBRCE
BEH{E R E 2 EURR — AR Y
BlogiaaFHFRBBzEHRMSE -
ARREESRBRMZZRERS
BEERMS AR TTHEABEREH

Based on the experience of the management and
repayment record of the customers, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally
recoverable. For those balances associated with litigations,
the directors of the Company will assess the cases based

HiE- on legal advices from lawyers and provide allowance far
the irrecoverable debts.

RIEERFEz2D Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
2008 2007
FHT THIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
£ At beginning of the year 10,475 5,986
HREPRUWBEXCHEZMERE  Impairment losses recognised on debtors 5,961 4,489
& At end of the year 16,436 10,475

REBRHOEANCHEEZE S EW
BRIN - HE5H24959,943 0005 7T (2007
F:6,041,00087)  FEZZEEER
FEEABIAEENBAY -tk
B S el R #24,231,000# T (2007
& : 4,231,000 T) B ERIRE - BRE
AZEERESETFEREMETY
FreRMAEM -

EEECHDHIBEEHKEAZM
R -DHRFFRZIZAREBLER
BERS - miEWEE S E WIS
2,059,000/ 7t (20074 : &) 2 {E R
1Eo

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade debtors with an aggregated
balance of HK$9,943,000 (2007: HK$6,041,000) which
have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. In addition, a debtor balance of
HK$4,231,000 (2007: HK$4,231,000) has been individually
impaired since such debt will be settled by the customer
at a discount as agreed by arbitration.

The management has withdrawn a litigation against a
trade debtor as they consider the legal and professional
expenses involved will be high, and the related debtor
balance of HK$2,059,000 {2007: nil} was individually
impaired.
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23 EWER ReREFIE - & 23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS - continued
ERESRFAEAEREMBER tncluded in trade debtors are bills discounted with recourse
80,426,000 7T (20074 : 78,233,000 amounting to HK$80,426,000 (2007: HK3$78,233,000)
B) RO MIREYW AR F017,223,0004 and factored debtors amounting to HK$17,223,000 (2007:
7L (20074 : 13,734,000% %) » &8 HK$13,734,000). The Group provided a credit guarantee
HedzsrREaRa s HAER over the expected losses of those debtors. Accordingly,
BtzERS - Bt - *EHEBES the Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount
BEZAEVESER2IEEE R of the debtors and has recognised the cash received as a
REWRZAFETEE (RHE29) - secured borrowing (see note 29).

24, EWREE AL 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
2007938 - ALTEFRHRAKE In March 2007, certain close family members of Mr. Lau
ZRANREXRETEEAAEDERD Sak Hong, Philip, a director of the Company, exercised
#E - FMERE - 2T 2 120,072,000 the share options granted to them as employees of the
R EHA -4 #£17,196,0008 L B Group to subscribe for 20,072,000 ordinary shares in the
HIEER2007E4R V28I -BH Company at an aggregate amount of HK$17,196,000.
FEAERERRERE - Such amounts were fully settled in early April 2007. The

amounts were unsecured and interest-free.

25. B EABHELIRE 25.  AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES
tHRxEAEERF 2BERAMEF The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
NEBRRHEZ -BUBELAFRE on demand withon one year. Included in the amounts due
2 3 7B e B 4% ) B BR 301,049,000 7T from associates is a trade receivable from an associate of
(20074:1,049,000/8 L)  BR&AR B IA HK$1,049,000 (2007: HK$1,049,000} which is aged over
90E - 90 days.

EMERBCREMBARREE  THP Such balance is past due but not impaired as the associate
WRoARNENELTHBREREBR generates positive cash flows and profit during the year,
= AHETHELRERE- accordingly, no impairment loss is considered necessary.

26. BHEEELSE 26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

2008 2007
FTEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
LATdE#H Listed securities

REE L TRAGSF Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 4,230 7,152

REBBHN EHRAESH Equity securities listed outside
Hong Kong 16,151 17,668

REBRN IS &S Debt securities listed outside

Hong Kong - 793
20,381 25,613

Starlight International Heldings Ltd H#ERRBERA R




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A% T A B R

For the year ended 31 March 2008 &%2008F3A31 B it £

27. BUEERAR 27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
RITHETFERSOEFEAMBERE Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
ARREMRIEAKATEEN 2T and short term bank deposits with an ariginal maturity of
FFEBROOVE (2007F - 1.50E) 2 three months or less at an average interest rate of 0.01%
MEBRITER - (2007: 1.50%) per annum.

28. BAYRBRRREGRA 28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES |

2008 2007 ‘
FTHERT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR 1TE N Trade creditors 101,584 193,281
FEf EF B R TR Royalty and withholding
tax payable 19,124 9,341
FEMFRTH Receipt in advance 755 11,355
H A< 8 3 R B Other creditors and accrued
EETEE expenses 54,749 59,852
176,212 273,829
KREEBENESERZRESITE The aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet
T date is as follows:
2008 2007
FHER THT
HK$'000 HK$°'000
0—30H 0 - 30 days 70,671 146,779
31—-60H 31 — 60 days 17,887 21,159
61—90H4 61 — 90 days 5,500 10,782
iEiBo08 Over 90 days 7,526 14,561
101,584 193,281
FHER2FHRBEHAWA -FEMED The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
M HERETIRHE  LHERAGERN days. The Group has financial risk management policies
RAREARRARM - in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the

credit timeframe.
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29. HER 29. BORROWINGS
2008 2007
FHERT FET
HK$:000 HK$'000
| HRB&EmT Borrowings comprise the followings:
SRR ADER Trust receipts and import loans 141,883 126,039
SHER Short term loans 181,989 125,122
TREAEERYRERZEX Loans related to bills discounted
with recourse 80,426 78,233
FAER Bank loan 48,778 -
EEMBER Debt factoring loans 11,974 121
‘ 465,050 329,515
|
' ok il Analysed as:
‘ BiER Secured 232,297 95,777
: ki Unsecured 232,753 233,738
|
465,050 329,515
|
| BHEEROT : The borrowings are repayable as fallows:
2008 2007
FERx FHEL
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERRIER On demand or within one year 430,160 329,515
1F{RB2FR More than one year but not
exceeding two years 11,110 -
2FREASTFR More than two years but
not more than five years 23,780 -
465,050 329,515
o RBATETAMER Less: Amounts due within
gz 308 one year shown under
current liabilities {430,160) (329,515)
34,8580 -
AREIERAZBER  BEFEMER3I0 The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings
EZE6.2# (20075 : 4 9B E£5.628) &t which are interest bearing at a range from 3.0% to 6.2%
B HAEASREGREHEMR - (2007: 4.9% to 5.62%) per annum. Interest is repriced

every month.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 Bt ZE2008F3A3 BLEFH

30. #BITEX 30. BANK OVERDRAFTS
FEMRITEZREREH -BH The Group's bank overdrafts are floating-rate borrowings.
FERTEHEFEEE (2007F : 8[8) The interest is charged at an average interest rate of 6.1%
HE ERMEHAENEE- (2007: 8%) per annum. Interest is repriced every month,
31, BEBE 31.  DEFERRED TAXATION
AEFRATEFCHRBEIEERER The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and
REMREERAZTNT : assets recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

MEBRERE RAVRER

Revaluation
Accelerated of REER
tax investment Tax R an
depreciation  properties losses Others Total

TR TEn TR TER THEL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

3133
(note)

#2006E4 818 At 1 April 2006 {(11,199) (2,311) 7,607 274 {5,629)
FhitA (ng) Credit {charge) to income

Yeid for the year 2,827 (892) (2,626) - (691)

R2007F3HA318 At 31 March 2007 (8,372) (3,203 4,681 274 {6,320)
FREA (H8) k& Credit (charge) to income

for the year 2,050 {2,734) 2,046 7329 8,691

F2008F3H318 At 31 March 2008 {6,322) (5,937} 7,027 7,603 2,31

Mg HaxBEhFERes RS2 RENME Note: Others mainly represent temporary difference arising from

HrEBER - unrealised profits on inventories.

MEFAERABERMS STELH For the purposes of the balance sheet presentation,

FEERAMEHEH FEUBES certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset,

AgzBEHASLBRINOT The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

2008 2007

T FET

HK$"000 HK$°'000

BEHEERE Deferred tax assets 7,542 1,263

BIEBLIEE Deferred tax liabilities {5.171) {7,583)

2,37 {6,320)
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31.

32.

Starlight International Hoidings Ltd

WiEsE — & 31. DEFERRED TAXATIONS — continued
ERREHETARERBFEIE £E The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect
WE MBI A E132,592,000% 7T ~ of tax losses of HK$132,592,000 (2007: HK$129,570,000)
(20074 © 129,570,000/ =) MR & due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
EHEBEEE-FEIHEABES2RE Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of
86,593,0007% 7T (20074 : 81,141,000 HK$86,593,000 (2007: HK$81,141,000) that will expire
A& TT) BB FR20095F E20195F (20074 ¢ in the years of 2009 to 2019 (2007: 2008 to 2019), other
2008 FE2019F ) DIHIZ 518 - HibH tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
RN ERREE -
Wi A - B2008F1ATHE - Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
FEEBROAIAROBRESIRER consclidated financial statements in respect of the
HBAEHAEANE N FEE T temporary differences attributable to the undistributed
0 R R 7R ) R TR T e R retained profits earned by the subsidiaries in PRC
AREEBEOERE2R BltsS6 amounting to approximately HK$314,000 starting from
BBRErERYBEZHBLTIZED 1 January 2008 under the New Law of PRC that requires
ERBEAM2ESEZR 2 BIEHED withholding tax upon the distribution of such profits to
314,000 JTET R IBH o the shareholders as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
prohable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the fareseeable {uture,
R 32. SHARE CAPITAL
RiGBE
Number FHET
of shares HK$°C00
FREECAETT . BiBAR Ordinary shares of HK$0.40 each
SEERA Authorised:
B2006%4A18 - At 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007
200742 H31E and 31 March 2008
K2008%3A31H 1,250,000,000 500,000
EETRMERE Issued and fully paid:
20064818 At 1 April 2006 760,880,614 304,352
TT{E RS AR HE T B 1T 2 AR Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 30,434,500 12,174
REE AR {n Repurchase of shares {3,707,500) (1,483)
F2007%63H31E At 31 March 2007 787,607,614 315,043
TEREAREMETZRG Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 3,160,000 1,264
BIIRGIESIRAR Issue of shares as scrip dividends 4,776,214 1,910
BRI G Repurchase of shares (5,165,000) (2,066)
200838311 At 31 March 2008 790,378,828 316,151

HREEBRFRQA
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32. B&x -4
FRRBAEZEBFENT ¢
(a) TE2006F11A KQRETH

{0

(d)

{e}

BREERAEATE BRER
BA G040 T E0.89 T L
TR E177,982,5000k T RE &

32.

SHARE CAPITAL - continued
Details of the changes in the share capitat of the Company
are as follows:

(a)

in November 2006, 7,982,500 shares of HK$0.40
each were issued at a range of HK$0.40 to HK$0.89
per share as a result of the exercise of certain share

0.40% L Z B 13 » options of the Company by their holders.
F2006%F 128 - A0 AlE T (b}  In December 2006, 760,000 shares of HK$0.40
BREEREATE BitEa each were issued at a range of HK$0.80 to HK$0.89
Al A B 1%0.80# = =0.89# T per share as a result of the exercise of certain share
2 {8 # B 17760,0000 & IR @ (& options of the Company by their holders.
0.40# T 2 B8 15 -
PR2007F 1A - AR ETH (©  In January 2007, 250,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
REREZEFATE BAltED were issued at HK$0.89 per share as a result of the
BILAFRROBIEIL Z BB ET exercise of certain share options of the Company
250,000 & B8 H {HO.40/& T 2 by their holders.
Fin o
2007537 - AoalE TR (d)  In March 2007, 21,442,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
BEFAATE HULERF were issued at a range of HK$0.80 to HK$1.72 per
AFRR0.80OE L EV.72E L2 M share as a result of the exercise of certain share
¥ 1721,442, 0008 SR A options of the Company by their holders.
040 T2 {7 »
EH Z2007F3A31BULEE (e}  The Company repurchased its own shares on the
M ALREBREREBEER Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 March
B a0 2007 as follows:
SRER
BEEA Price per share 2H
Number BiE BE Aggregate
R Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
B B FAT
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
20065 A May 2006 765,000 111 1.13 856
200656 A June 2006 2,295,000 [RR 1.16 2,622
2006104 October 2006 647,500 1.26 i.28 824
3,707,500 4,302
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32. BE - &
LEEREHREDDHE RELFE
BT RS AR O R 3 1 5 BB 40 T M AR FEORL
Ao ERIRMN ZBEENBE ZEiEH -
HERSFHEBOEEZHENH R
HAIEBEERAHEEHE -

()

{g)

200748 - A RRBETE
REERBATE BltEAE
A EFR08I4E L Z MBBT
500,000 E R HE HO40E T2
REAm -

PR2007F5H - A ORE TER
BERBFATE BHELR A
LAEROBI4BILENTZETLZ
& 18 B 772,660,000 X EE
0402 AR {5 -

F20074E108 - AR T LAEAR1.836
AL ZHEETA776,2148 5
Refm{E0.40 T2 A% 1D 1E A LARR
8.

REBE2008F3A318 HFE
R ForAEBMTHREDER
{0

32

SHARE CAPITAL - continued

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The
premium on repurchase was charged against accumulated
profits. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the
shares cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits
to the capital redemption reserve.

(H

(g}

(i)

In April 2007, 500,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
were issued at HK$0.814 per share as a result
of the exercise of certain share options of the
Company by their holders.

In May 2007, 2,660,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
were issued at a range of HK$0.814 to HK$1.72
per share as a result of the exercise of certain share
options of the Company by their holders.

in October 2007, 4,776,214 shares of HK$0.40
each were issued at HK$1.836 per share as scrip
dividend.

The Company repurchased its own shares on the
Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 March
2008 as follows:

SRM®
RHBE Price per share BAHE
Number B{E BE Aggregate
A Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
i AT E
HK$ HK$ HK3$'000
2007104 October 2007 2,222,500 1.42 1.54 3,371
2007€11 4 November 2007 2,942,500 1.43 1.52 4,333
5,165,000 7,704

LERGRBLOETHE &F
REEETHRAE R F R
EEEER L - BERD
HEDNE RFTAM - EBER
s EE . SR m R
EMNEREREEQEEE -
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The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase
and accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of
these shares. The premium on repurchase was
charged against accumulated profits. An amount
equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits
to the capital redemption reserve.
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33.

BE - &
FMECRTRNER T EAERRSA
ERTZRNEERSELS -

B AR

EOTZBBREHD

Aonlz BREE DB 200269512
ARTREFMAGLEBBERS
HsE ([HEHE)) - BesERE R
EHASEHAEL 2 ERIREEBHRE
Bh-HiaBzoeBB2HAREEM
BB -JEMTTHE HRABEUE
BoEFP - EBAASBERMEARLE
FRMB LR ZHE -

REBEHHSRTZAEBARERT
ERARTZEERDASE  THIE
BREEHTRMH210%  MAAD
R EARITEAEAHE O] R ITRD LR -
TUBATHCSRITREZ30% -

BEMBRMERO ZBEMI2EEA -
RTE2AAZBBEBITEMEE
R TRTLRGAH  TRHREAT
HEBETRZZ1% -

REERITEMROAERRDRE
Tl B @R R B R E5FE o ABEAT
7R3 AR B R PO fE fo] B ) 77 (2 RA AR A -
FREERETERRRSEE -

BREZRNOEABEATEERARE
HEERARTSEERONRE THREEE
ARG ZHTE  FMERREAH
REEESER ZAREGFHRTME - &
(IR RLAHMZEE  AREEH

RLMEBEs 2O s Bk A HER
IHARN - REBREIRERE
Lo ZEHELAERTRTTRE -

32.

33.

SHARE CAPITAL — continued
All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option schemes of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was
approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 12 September 2002 (the "Old
Scheme”) for a period of 5 years. The primary purpose is
to provide incentives or rewards to participants for their
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the Old
Scheme included any employees, non-executive directors,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, advisors or
consultants and shareholders of any member of the
Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Old Scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% while overall limit for all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in
any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board,
which will not be more than 5 years from the date on
which the option is granted. The option may be exercised
by the grantee at any time during the option period. Each
share option vested immediately at the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by the Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii} the
average of the closing price of the shares of the 5 trading
day immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the
nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer. The consideration
for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be
refundable.

Annual Report 2008 £/

97




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B v BE B W

For the year ended 31 March 2008 BZE2008F 3431 HILFH

33, Bl - ® 33. SHARE OPT!ON SCHEMES - continued
FATIZHMRENEH — X Share option schemes of the Company - continued
Est@ S R2007F9R 1B RER - H The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and
e BTURBELUFGHRLBRIE- thereafter, no more option could be granted pursuant
REBEFBCBEEIERENS - to the Old Scheme. In respect of the options already
FHREXENREH - BEHTHZS granted under the Old Scheme, the provisions shall remain
BHZzEREZS/RNT in force. The movements of the share options granted
pursuant to the Old Scheme were as follows:
MIRERE
Number of share options
REH
o RATEE EXER RERK
Qutstanding RATHE i o A7 68
TR at Exercised Cutstanding
Exercise beginning during at end
| #£FEH Date of grant price of the year the year of the year
I
HKS
E;Z2008F3H31H  For the year ended
LEFERE 31 March 2008
!
20035108108 10 October 2003 0.86 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 !
2004F11A2A 2 November 2004 0.814 2.500,000 (2,000,000) 500,000
2006%F1 B5H 5 January 2006 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
20068 H16H 16 August 2006 1.15 500,000 (500,000) -
2006511 A13A 13 November 2006 1.45 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
200751 A4H 4 january 2007 1.66 820,000 (600,000) 220,000 |
2007%¢2R11 1 February 2007 1.72 100,000 (60,000) 40,000 |
20073R7H 7 March 2007 1.93 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
23,920,000 (3,160,000) 20,760,000
FEEE T Exercisable at the end
of the year 20,760,000
IEETEE Weighted average exercise
(A7) price (HK$) 1.09 1.05 1.10
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33.

BEEN — & 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
FRRZBRAHE - K Share option schemes of the Company - continued
AERERE
Number of share options
RED
el R AT E EXFE EREE RER
Outstanding ABF ATTE o RATHE
fTiEE at Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise beginning during during at end
BFEM Date of grant price  of the year the year the year  of the year
AT
HKS
BE200753A8318 For the year ended
LtEE 31 March 2007
2003%5A208 2 May 2003 0.40 1,700,500 - (1,700,500) -
20036107108 10 October 2003 (.86 15,144,000 - (12,144,000) 3,000,000
2004584241 24 August 2004 0.808 3,000,000 - (3,000,000} -
2004411 K28 2 November 2004 0.814 2,650,000 - (150,000) 2,500,000
2005%12R22R 22 December 2005 0.80 4,910,000 - (4,910,000) -
20061 A5A 5 lanuary 2006 0.89 19,160,000 - (7,160,000) 12,000,000
2006487168 16 August 2006 1.15 - 500,000 - 500,000
2006%11R138 13 November 2006 1.45 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
200741H48 4 lanuary 2007 1.66 - 2,050,000 (1,230,000} 820,000
200742R18 1 February 2007 1.72 - 240,000 (140,000) 100,000
2007%3A74 7 March 2007 1.93 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
46,564,500 7,790,000 (30,434,500) 23,920,000
FH T Exercisable at the end
of the year 23,920,000
IEEHTIER (B Weighted average exercise
price (HK$} 0.84 1.68 0.86 1.09

A CEERERE N B BRESEATTE -

FRAE{TERBRENITEBHZ NE
OB 5246 (2007F - 2.228

L) e

FREEERBRTHHETFEFTMN

R R4

The above share options were granted for an exercise
period of five years from the date of grant of the share
options.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$2.46
(2007: HK$2.22).

No share options have been granted to the directors of
the Company pursuant to the Old Scheme,
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33. BREE - &
ZLATzRRENE - X
ABIM2008F1 B1SEBITZRESR
BIAE LBEFERASMOFE B
EralImstal)) - EEBMAREKIS
SHEHAZEN BELBRBEFESR
ERsI A BAEEEEEZAN
BR W8z ER2RKEES
ERCZPHRERBREEE  TRADT
HFEHTRTRBLNIERY) - H#HE
& EAEAC RERER -

BEHHARE BBRERITER
TRETZ AR TREAE
FE s BIF2008F 1 ASA AR
EETRHZ10% MERERLER
A fTEMARER G EE T BRTE
BTG Z230% °

RERERLZEBM2EBAR &2
EETHEMBREMBFOESTFETL
BB TAERAYRCRITREZ
1% - BRIFE T R HEMNX -

WREo ITHEARBEERRE
THRIRH B RBBIOF - FEA
A RERERRANEAEMTER
AR HE -

BREzZBTRESERRE -HE
MERTSERORETHEREESR -
e dn 2 AT < (i) b B B AT 8 415 (8
ZHBRGFHUTE: KRG R
HEAMZHEKRESESH -

BEmBE>EMNTAF LB S
28 IR - BHIBEEZREH B
T ZSTBRETAERTETIRE .
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33.

SHARE OPTICON SCHEMES - continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme") was
approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 15 fanuary 2008 for a period
of 10 years. The primary purpose is to recognise the
contribution of participants and to recruit and retain
high calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants of the
New Scheme included any full time employees (including
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not}, suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the shares in issue at the adoption of the New Scheme
on 15 January 2008 while overall limit for all outstanding
opticns granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant in any
12 month period up to the date of the grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless certain conditions
are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an aption is any period as determined by the Board,
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date on
which the option is granted. The option may be exercised
by the grantee at any time during the option pericd.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by the Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i}
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the
average of the closing price of shares on the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or {iii} the
nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The consideration
for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no circumsiance be
refundable.
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33, RSB - H 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
ELTCMREHD - ;X Share option schemes of the Company - continued
BEFHS OB I BGREEEfE:R The movements of the options granted pursuant to the
o New Scheme were as follows:

FACDBEER
200838318
MATEZBREHE

Number of share

options granted

TEM during the year

Exercise and outstanding

BLAs Date of grant price as at 31.3.2008
BT
HK$

BE2008F3A31ALEE For the year ended 31 March 2008

200818238 23 January 2008 1.042 150,000
200841 A28E8 28 January 2008 0.96 346,000
496,000
FEEAl P17 Exercisable at the end of the year 496,000
METFHITERE GBi) Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 0.98
AL MRARBER IR H B EIRI10FERITHE - The above share options were granted for an exercise
| period of ten years from the date of grant of the share
options.
AR ERENHABETESEM No share options have been granted to the directors of
FRARHE - the Company pursuant to the New Scheme.
AEFA AEDESEEREBRIE Total consideration received during the year from
mE 2B RER2E T (2007F : 24 employees for taking up the options granted amounted to
ATL) e HK$2 (2007: HK$24).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted are measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the services received is measured based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model.

33. MARMESTHE -8R 33.
ERTZBRBEHE — X
REREREMBHBEEEZQAFED
SEMBLBREZ CFEL A
REREzATFENERANZ-SAH
EBENX A -

BZEJ08F3A31ALER For the year ended 31 March 2008

20084 20084
1823H 182884
BLERM Grant dates 23.1.2008 28.1.2008
BREz 2FERRR Fair value of share options and assumptions:
RErdAsy 218 GEx) Fair value at measurement dates (HK$) 0.224 0.263
BEE GET) Share price (HK$) - 0.880 0.960
1T (L) Exercise price (HK$) 1.042 0.960
mEHKE Expected valatility 53.95% 49.32%
FERLREHARR () Option life (years) 3 3
ampReR Expected dividend yield 4.35% 4.38%
HBERF = Risk-free interest rate 2.56% 2.56%
BE2007%3A3MALFHE For the year ended 31 March 2007
2006%F 2006 2007 20074 20076
8168 11H13H 1A4R 2H1H8 3H78H
BHAM Grant dates 16.8.2006 13.11.2006 4.1.2007 1.2.2007 7.3.2007
BREZLFERRER Fair value of share options
and assumptions:
W BRIz ATHE (BT Fair value at measurement
dates (HKS) 0.223 0.317 .343 0.346 0.323
& () Share price (HK$) 1.150 1.440 1.640 1.720 1.920
TiefE (&) Exercise price {HK$) 1.150 1.450 1.660 1.720 1.930
HAER Expected volatility 39.45% 39.40% 37.08% 36.37% 30.59%
& R 1 R (%F) Option fife {years) 2 2 2 2 2
RSk EE Expected dividend yield 5.28% 2.69% 2.47% 3.54% 3.35%
BEmENE Risk-free interest rate 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.6%%
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BREE - &
FoRZBREMNE - X
EHEBIRBAECRERBX1F
MEEREmMIE - CREXAAR
HERTREEERTHBELER -
TERMEITEERARFLNERE
EHTARE THHABRRZIEDY
MREHATEEHEREARE -

EHEAFAELTIANRENTE L 2 B2
i 2R BA 3 42 55125,000/ 7T (20074 :
2,500,000 7C) =

The Singing Machine Company, Inc.
(IsSMC] » R EHHS4.07% B2 >

MRATF) ZBEE

SMCHS R # 5T 81 2 72001 9AR6H
BOZBERFAIAT EHMMORR#
HEA([SMCEHBI) » SMCEFRITY 8 T
B BHERE SRABR-HEM
EEMABR R EFRGRBIENERE
SMCEBRR Z A% - SMCETEIRES
$£1,950,000SMCE R - ME R A
7% BA R SR 2 R 3 1 6% 450,0000%
s -

BEEEEESE B TE2EH
WO EFEEEAZHERREITERN
EEERBEFETZEEROEAEBA
300,0008% A% 19 -

AR T E R SMCHEERIRTE -
HT A EARE L A EF0F (A
HETERO%EULEZRFA A
B5E) c AR AR REAERRAL
(B RITTE M AR A - R RER R T
EEHRHKEE -

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$125,000
(2007: HK$2,500,000) for the year in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. {(“SMC"}, a 54.07% owned subsidiary
of the Company

SMC’s share option scheme was approved by SMC's
shareholders at the special meeting held on & September
2001 {(the "SMC Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was
developed to provide a means whereby the directors and
selected employees, officers, consultants, and advisors
of SMC may be granted incentive or non-qualified stock
options to purchase common stock of SMC. The SMC
Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000 shares of
SMC’s common stock and a maximum of 450,000 shares
to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12 months period up to the date of the grant will
be 300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. The
option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during
the option period. Each option vested in one year from
the date of grant.
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33. A E — & 33.  SHARE OPTION SCHEMES — continued
The Singing Machine Company, Inc. Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
(I[sMC] ' Z0F#BES4.07%HRE > Company, Inc. ("SMC”"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary
FRAT) 2RSS E — K of the Company - continued
EREZRNREESL BT E S The subscription price of the share options is determined
(TZRE)RE FEHFAMCHES by the Stock Option Committee ("Committee”), which
BFHE 728k A EIEEHAK - R consists of two or more directors chosen by the Board of
BzREEATEBAMRIEREN SMC. The subscription price of the share options will be
BEzBTR(SEHEETREEER no less than the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer
1%L EZIEAEAME  REEL date (or, if granted to a holder of 10% or more of the
BT EBMCRERELAHUTE common stock, the subscription price will be no less than
Z110%) = 110% of the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer
date).
SMCETBIFTIELEBIRE -2 885 The movements of the share options granted pursuant the
nE SMC Scheme were as follows:
BRARA
Number of share options
BHAR TEM FOMATE FACHY  EACHRE  FRCHE FREXTHE
Qutstanding Granted  Exercised  Forfeited Qutstanding
Exercise at beginning during during during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year the year the year  of the year
BE2008E For the year ended
IANALER 3 March 2008
2000£955H 5 September 2000 2.04 43,650 - - (7,500} 36,150
20025958110 11 September 2002 11.09 30,000 ~ - - 30,000
2002128318 31 December 2002 9.00 90,140 - - (1,000} 89,140
2003E3A78 T March 2003 25.60 30,000 - - - 30,000
2003F4A186 18 Agril 2003 1.20 10,000 - - - 10,000
2003§12R19R 19 December 2003 1.87 39,600 - - (4,060} 35,540
200452 A6R 6 February 2004 i.54 46,500 - - - 46,500
200453A298 29 March 2004 .20 20,000 - - - 20,000
200454 A266 26 April 2004 105 12,000 - - - 12,000
2004511A298 29 November 2004 0.75 60,000 - - - 60,000
2004812818 1 December 2004 0.77 40,000 - - (20,000) 20,000
2005§5A98 9 May 2005 0.60 207,000 - - (25,000} 182,000
2005F6H6H 6 June 2005 0.76 30,000 - - - 30,000
2006%F1H208 20 January 2006 0.34 30,000 - - - 30,000
2006%2R18 1 Febryary 2006 0.32 30,000 - (30,000) - -
2006F3A318 31 March 2005 0.32 80,000 - - - 80,000
2006F4 4108 10 April 2006 0.33 484,000 - {117,515) {30,000} 336,485
20074343189 31 March 2007 0.93 100,600 - - {20,000} 80,000
2008F3A18 31 March 2008 0.45 - 120,000 - - 120,000
1,382,890 120,000 (147,515) (107,560) 1,247,815
REHEITE Exercisable at the end
&t the year 1,029,296
IHEFEGER Weighted average exercise
(&) price (US$) 249 0.45 033 0.85 168
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33, MREs® - & 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
The Singing Machine Company, Inc. Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
(FSMC! - XD HFHS4.07% B2 Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary
MELS)) <BRAETEH — X of the Company ~ continued
REANA
Number of share options
RLER TEN EOMATHE  FREBEM  FAETE  FRCER FRERTE
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Qutstanding '

Exercise  at beginning during during during at end
Date of grant price.  of the yea: the year the year the year  of the year
BZ2007%3A318 For the year ended

123 31 March 2007

200069A5H 5 September 2000 204 51,150 - - {7,500 43,650
200269AN1A 11 September 2002 11.09 30,000 - - - 30,000
2002512A1H 31 December 2002 9.00 125,640 - - {35,500) 90,140
003518248 24 January 2003 1.26 10,000 - - {10,000) -
2003%3R78 7 March 2003 5.60 30,000 - - - 30,000
2003F4A188 18 April 2003 1.20 10,000 - - - 10,000
20035124198 19 Decamber 2003 197 129,820 - - {90,220} 39,600
2004F1A23H 23 January 2004 1.60 32,000 - - {32,000 -
2006%2A6H 6 February 2004 1.54 46,500 - - - 46,500
2004%¥3RA29H 29 March 2004 1.20 20,000 - - - 20,000
200454R26A 26 April 2004 1.05 12,000 - - - 12,000
20045114298 29 Novemnber 2004 0.75 60,000 - - - 60,000
2004F12A1R 1 December 2004 ) 40,000 - - - 40,000
2005%5A9H 9 May 2005 0.60 483,000 - {115,000) {161,000 207,000
2005F6A6H 6 lune 2005 0.76 30,000 - - - 30,000
2006514208 20 January 2006 0.34 60,000 - {30,000) - 30,000
200652418 1 February 2006 0.32 30,000 - - - 30,000
2006534318 31 March 2006 0.32 100,000 - {20,000) - 80,000
2006547108 10 April 2006 0.33 - 843,000 {120,000) {239,000) 484,000
2007%3R31E 31 March 2007 0.93 - 100,000 - - 100,000

1,300,110 943,000 {285,000)  (575.220) 1,382,390

RELAE Exercisable at the end
al the year 582,307
MEFHTER Weighted average exercise
(#7) price (US$) 211 0.39 0.44 141 249
TRESHMRELBREESEEH The above options were granted for an exercise period of
EE10FEATTE » ten years from the date on which the options are vested.
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33. B EEYHE - 8\ 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
The Singing Machine Company, Inc. Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
{TSMC] » DRI A54.07% K% 2 Company, Inc. (“SMC”"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary
MRAR) 2BRESEH — X of the Company - continued
FARTTE/ BRERITEER 2 The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
BEEEREARAVAEA(ZEFLF: for share options exercised during the year was US$0.24
0.86%7T) © (2007: US$0.86).
Ao TEEEEREMGHRIEIEE No share options have been granted to the directors of
fo] FE AR AE - the Company pursuant to the SMC Scheme.
MEREREMFPLBREZAEET The fair value of services received in return for share
SEFRELBRE SFESLR B options granted are measured by reference to the fair
BEREzATFENER DR value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
FEMHEALET - value of the services received is measured based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model.

BZ2008F3A18LEE For the year ended 31 March 2008

2008%3A318
Loy =p -t Grant date 31.3.2008
RETBEBZAFEE (ERT) Fair value at measurement date {US$) 0.12
B E () Share price (US$) 0.45
1TRER (Er) Exercise price (US$) 0.45
TREHELE Expect volatility 67.41%
RS HE AR (&) Opiicon life (year) 3
TREARR 2 Expected dividend yield 0%
=R Risk-free interest rate 3.3%
BE20073HA31BLER For the year ended 31 March 2007

2007538318

b =) Grant date 31.3.2007
REBE 4FE (B Fair value at measurement date (US3) 0.34
R={E (%£7T) Share price (US$) 0.93
TER (ET) Exercise price (US$) 0.93
RS Expect volatility 90.77%
[BRTEERR (F) Option life (year) 1
HR B Expected dividend yield 0%
B ERFE Risk-free interest rate 4.65%

KB MAERRSMCE H 2 B
AR X 8 %8187,000# 7T (20074 :
66,000 7T) - 2007 E 2 RBEEBIE
R2006FE4 A BB REZLTE
B THREEEREN R
SMCEIE#E -
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The Group recognised total expense of HK$187,000
{2007: HK$66,000) for the year in relation to share
options granied by SMC. The amount for 2007 does not
include the fair value of share options granted on 1 April
2006 as these options were granted bhetore acquisition of
SMC by the Group.
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34.

35.

BEXEABER 34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
REAFAEESEEREMGE The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
EEEEESETE - BEFEDZ the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
MR FRgE st TRABRRMEE while maximising the return to shareholders through the
BAER AEHERRBEEEIFH optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
[@ - overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
FEMZELAEEREERER(BE The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
HEE (A9 ER I NBRRES R which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 29 net
SHEEA) RADRBRAEN LR (2 of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
BEBTRE - EREREF) - shareholders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and accumulated profits.
ARTEBEFTRTHESRTAARAEE B The directors of the Company review the capital structure
He—HoAMBEBEEERARERSE regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
WMEARFMSEZEBHR FEFTRB cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
RS - BITHARSD - BORH - % capital. The Group will balance its overali capital structure
THEBEEADRFEEEFR Y through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
B AR T share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
@I A 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
TRIANSER Categories of financial instruments
2008 2007
T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TREE Financial assets
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 24,052 24,075
BIEERIRSE Investments held for trading 20,381 25,613
THERIA Derivative financial instruments 120 480
BEABEATETA Financial assets designated
BEzZamEE at fair value through profit or loss 8,149 20,795
B R EWEH Loans and receivables
(BfEREREE (including cash and
FEEA) cash equivalents) 316,001 421,357
THAMR Financial liabilities
fTESRIRA Derivative financial instruments 518 438
Hit&maE Other financial liabilities 624,931 555,407
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include debtors
and deposits, amounts due from related parties, amounts
due from/to associates, available-for-sale investments,
investments held for trading, derivative financial
instruments, financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss, bank balances and cash, creditors,
bank overdrafts and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk,

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

WERNZEREENT liabilities (including intra-group current accounts) at the
reporting date are as foltows:

2008 2007
BE =i} wE =L |
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FAnm TR T#T TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Canadian doliars 47,643 434 56,004 14,278
B Euro 94 19,370 71 -
AT Hong Kong dollars 70,474 308,731 17,462 409,736
HE lapanese dollars 4,172 2.876 2,305 2.705
HT Macao pataca 53 - 83 -
AR Renminbi 153 3,712 398 1,683
g Singapore dollars 2,670 935 7,381 -
ET United States dollars 145,195 102,881 142,659 99,030

AL B BTSRRI H P -
Am TEESERNERRE BRA
RERBEBHHERIIEER -
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The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management moenitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Canadian dollars, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars. Under the pegged exchange rate system,
the financial impact on exchange difference between Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars will be immaterial
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
10 a 5% increase and decrease in Canadian dollars and,
Hong Kong doltars against each group entity's functional
currency (including Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi).
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where Canadian dollars and Hong Kong daollars strengthen

BKEEAEEE - 5% against each group entity’s functional currency. For a
5% weakening of Canadian dollars and Hong Kong dollars
against each group entity’s functional currency, there
would be an equal and oppasite impact on the profit.

2008 2007

FHER FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

ngxlr Canadian dollars 2,360 2,086
BT Hong Kong dollars (11,913) (19.614)

EEEIARORTEHZRARBY &R
REAZER ABFEETHIAAR
B4 51 EE BB -

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate bank on bank balances. The directors
consider the Group's exposure of bank deposits io
interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity periods.

In addition, the Group has cash flow interest rate risk on
floating-rate borrowings and bank overdrafts. The Group
currently does not have any policy on cash flow hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The interest expenses on the Group's floating-rate
borrowings are linked with Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for floating-rate
borrowing and bank overdrafts at the balance sheet date
(notes 29 and 30). The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date
was autstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 would decrease/
increase by HK$23,661,000 (2007: decrease/increase by
HK$16,562,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure 1o interest rates on its floating-rate borrowings
and bank overdrafts.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

Price risk

The Group's derivative financial instruments, financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss,
held-for-trading investments and certain available-for-sale
investments are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective financial instruments had
been 5% higher/lower:

. profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 increase/
decrease by HK$1,407,000 (2007: increase/decrease
by HK$2,323,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss and held-fer-trading investments; and

. investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$1,000 (2007: increase/decrease by
HK$2,000) for the Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2008 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
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35,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

- continued

Credit risk — continued

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in North America. The trade debtors
located in North and South America accounted for 70%
(2007: 70%) of the Group's total trade debtors as at
31 March 2008. The Group also has concentration of
credit risk by customers as 7.91% (2007: 32.14%) and
44.57% (2007: 52.07%) of the total trade debtors was
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Ligquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of horrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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35, &RMIAB - & 35.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
MEAREEEREREE - & Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued
REEELEE - X Liquidity risk - continued
BRUABEREZBZOETAMS - For derivative instruments settle on a net basis,
GIHAUBIFREESERE EEESE undiscounted net cash outflows are presented. Whereas
BEHR ZETEIAZRBRRE they reguire gross settfement, the undiscounted gross
HEBREIERAZD - ’ outflows on these derivatives are shown in the table.
REEEENERE R Liquidity and interest risk tables
1k
#ER  JRIRRA Fj 1.1]
REHE B2 Less 18388 BREIE g Total BiEf
Effective  Repayable than 13 3 months Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 1 month months {0 1year Tyear  cash flows amouns

TR TR TRY Tin TR Tikn TAL
% HKS'060 HKE000  HKY'00 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§000 K500

0086 2008
AfEERAM Non-derivative financial

liabilities
HBRABABAGEY  Tiade and other creditors - 41,506 65,15 23305 18,414 - 148,901 148,901
BBELRHE Amount du? to zn associate - 2,808 - - - - 2,809 2,809
BR Bormowings 35 0,114 146,096 8151 35,692 36,050 538,524 465,050
RiTER Bank overdrats 61 8,320 - .- - - 8320 8171

72,149 mse 310,897 54,606 19,050 698,554 624931

fI4TR - HEBEEREEN  Derivatives - net settlement

BRg Options - 518 - - - - 518 518
| 0078 207
HicdRAR Non-derivative financial
| . liabilities
f RBREGERAGER  Tade and other creditors - 48,699 132,645 12,391 17626 - 221,361 21,361
ARUERGEE Amount due to an asodiate - 1,805 - - - - 2,809 2508
#R Borrawings 51 uni M3 £6,647 453 - 359,133 319,515
Bk Bank overdrafis 80 17 - - - - 1722 112
67,947 405,875 719,03 31,165 - 585,025 555,407

fIETR - HFABREN  Derivatives - net settiement
REH Cptions - 438 - - - - 438 438
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35.

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices;

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities {excluding derivative instruments and
financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis; and

. the fair values of derivative instruments and
financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss are determined with reference to
quoted prices from securities brokers.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

in June 2006, the Group acquired 56.14% of the
issued share capital of SMC at a consideration of
HK$24,257,000, including legal and professional fees of
HX$952,000. In addition to the new shares, SMC also
issued warrants to the Group at nil consideration. The
warrants contain the rights to purchase up to 5,000,000
aaditional shares of SMC at prices of U5$0.233 (the initial
price paid on a per share basis), U5$0.28 (equals to 120%
of the initial price) and US$0.35 (equals to 150% of the
initial price) on the first, third and fourth anniversary of
the closing date of the transaction. The total fair value of
the warrants at the date of issue was HK$5,532,000. The
warrant reserve and available-for-sale investments were
eliminated on consolidation. The acquisition had been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was HK$37,934,000.
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

NEFMNB BN FARFEE S The net liabilities acquired in the transaction, and the
FEHMOT - goodwill arising, were as follows:
FHERT
HK$ 000
PigiE > BfEFHE - Net liabilities acquired:
VE - EBRERRMH Property, plant and equipment ' 3,708
FE Inventories 12,479
FEUBER - EH RIAMATE Debtors, deposits and prepayments 13,892
HBiITETTERE Bank balances and cash 10,030
ERERREGRA Creditors and accrued charges (34,722)
FE{fi g Taxation payable (19,064}
(13,677}
e Goodwill 37,934
24,257
LA EREA Satisfied by:
BeRE Cash consideration 8,720
WEHBLRZEE Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries 15,537
24,257
URBBFREE S 23 % () mAUEE: Net cash {outflow) inflow arising on acquisition:
RErE Cash consideration (8,720)
Mz RTETRERS Bank balances and cash acquired 10,030
1,310

SMCEEREFNTE - £E S8 HE

RHERUOKERARF BRI

HEMORERBEHTEMLET - &%
MEZZE - WEASMCZIRTERR
FIREHEL TR BEEERZED RIR
RALEMEMyBHOHASL  UERW
FlazRBAEERE Al "3
BB B ERESMC Z B R IES -
36 $5 19 W & P $937,934, 00078 T ©

SMC is principally engaged in the development,
production, distribution, marketing and sales of karaoke
audio equipment, accessories and music and its shares
are listed on the American Stock Exchange. The directors
of the Company considered that the acquisition of equity
interests in SMC could help to diversify the category of
products and extend the existing distribution network of
the Group to achieve synergistic effect and economy of
scale of operations. Accordingly, the Group was willing to
pay a premium to acquire the equity interests in SMC and
resulted in a goodwill on acquisition of HK$37,234,000,
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36. WEBHEBLR - &
B EH i E2007E3 8310 (- 8
- SMCIEE 22007538318 LEE
EhIXRE Y XA R199,660,000%
T BEEREZ S E R FERES
183,440,000 5T »

i W BEFR2006FE4 1A R - RESE
2007 3A3ALFEZREHERER
52,442,290,000% 5L - MZEE 2@
Fi 495,311,000 - HEEHBHE
HER YT —rFALEETRER
2006 F4 VB EMETMIR 2 RS
BRI ZIBE  MIERMEEZIRA -

37. #RALEMBARNGER
FRSMCE BT S #£4,297,61901%
(20074 : 4,350,3810%) XA & T
EWMAE=F Bt xEHEFRFKAE
ZHRECHEEBY SAEERBHES
ALEWBLARASEHEE 2 kEY
279,000/ 7¢ ( 20074 : 10,194,000/&
7o) R B {5 7 B E (H 796,000 5T (2007
22,990,000 ) - R AL EH
B B 5B {7 HE 2% 7 4R 2% T AR B RASMC
BITEME G E FERBEGIMC
BEBE-EZHEHH -
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36.

37.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued

SMC contributed HK$199,660,000 to the Group's
turnover and a loss of HK$3,440,000 to the Group's profit
for the year ended 31 March 2007 between the date of
acquisition and 31 March 2007.

If acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2006, the
Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2007
would have been HK$2,442,290,000 and profit for that
year would have been HK3$85,311,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessary an indicative revenue and results of aperation
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2006, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future resuits.

DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year, SMC issued an aggregate of 4,297,619
shares (2007: 4,350,381 shares) to certain independent
third parties, accordingly, the shareholding held by the
Group was diluted and resulted in a gain on deemed
partial disposal amounting to HK$279,000 (2007;
HK$10,194,000), net of attributable goodwill of HK$6,000
{2007: HK$2,999,000). The gain on deemed partial
disposal was calculated as the difference between the
Group’s share of net assets in SMC, prior io and after
each additional issue of shares by SMC.
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38. HEMELT 38.  DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
F2006F9F  SMCH E H AM B In September 2006, SMC disposed of its 100% equity
Zx Allnternational SMC (HK) Limited interest in a subsidiary, International SMC (HK) Limited
(NMSMC 1) 2100% 3% 4 - L8 /399,000 (*ISMC"), at a consideration of HK$99,000.

AT
ISMCHRHERNAESEERDMT : The net liabilities of ISMC at the date of disposal were as
follows: I
TR
HK$ 000
FrEEBEEE - Net liabilities disposed of:
W BEREHE Property, plant and equipment 216
W R - 1mE RIAMHRIE Debtors, deposits and prepayments 380
RITEERERS Bank balances and cash 577
FETER R AT B B Creditors and accrued charges {1,230
FECIHHTR Taxation payable (19,064)
(19,121}
ERBREE Goodwill released 19,121
RS : Gain on disposal 99
UBREREZH Satisfied by cash consideration 99
PEREEEZHEMA GRH) B8 Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on disposal:
Be&AE Cash consideration 99
P&z HITHEFERS Bank balances and cash disposed of (577)
(478)
BAEFE - ISMCH KR EE & E£2007F The impact of ISMC on the Group’s resuits and cash flows
SH3BEEFEZXARFAGREBZER in the year ended 31 March 2007 was insignificant.
B FEKX-

39. XEFREXH 39.  MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
H20015F9F » Cosmo Communications In September 2001, Cosma Communications Corporation
Corporation{[Cosmol) & R AR T & & ("Cosmo”) was indebted to Master Light Enterprise
B EECEEROREE] - Limited {“Master Light”}, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
S A BECosmoB B IiTRR 501 4% 4% the Company, which previously held a 91.4% interest in
H)—E5#1,162,000E T(HER the issued share capital of Cosmo, pursuant to a loan
9,029,000/ 5T) 2 B 50 mCosmolT & in an aggregate amount of US$1,162,000 (equivalent
RV FE 7 AR 3#0838,000E mEE R to HK$9,029,000) and Cosmo was indebted to Master
6,511,000/ T) - Light for trade payables in the amount of US$838,000

(equivalent to HK$6,511,000).
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39.

40.

FTEHFBETE — E 39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION - continued
#2007FE3R158 + CosmoREERE On 15 March 2007, Cosmo and Master Light agreed that
FABBERRECNERSR T EE the outstanding balance of the loan and the trade payable
BACosmoBREEQ.05E T2 Yl to be converted into shares of Cosmo's common stock at
HDiEEZEN R Cosmol MERE a par value U5$0.05 per share as a full payment. Cosmo
EERERHEMEEARARK - would be released from all its obligations and liabilities
with respect to the loan and the irade payable.
TR RE - REBEMNCosmo FEIGAR Upon the completion of conversion, the equity interest
EEH01.4%I8I0%E93.8% » attributable to the Group in Cosmo increased from 91.4%
to 93.8%.
W2007E9[288 - SMCERE QT2 E On 28 September 2007, SMC and koncepts International
B 2R RSMCHEER AR EIBE Limited ("koncepts”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
BERAT (8RR RS EBESNER the Company and the immediate holding company of
300,000 7T (8 $42,340,000% ) SMC, agreed to convert a trade payable of US$300,000
BEAMCEREHEINETLZ TR {(equivalent to HK$2,340,000) into shares of SMC’s
FRIGEADENNR - SMCE R E i common stock at a par value US$0.01 per share as a full
HEBREMEEERRAE - payment. SMC would be released from all its obligations
and liabiiities with respect to the trade payable.
200838189 - SMCRE B E On 18 March 2008, SMC and koncepts agreed to a trade
EEEMRE198,000E L (HER payable of US$198,000 {equivalent to HK$1,540,000) into
1,540,000i8 0) @H asMCEB A E shares of SMC's common stock at a par value US$0.04
ONMERLZEBRRGEAZHTR- per share as a full payment. SMC would be released from
SMCERENEREREMABELR all its obligations and liabilities with respect to the trade
AfE- payable.
A A& 40. COMMITMENTS
2008 2007
FET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EENEBRESEMBRE Contracted for but not provided
BiEe in the consolidated

financial statements in respect of:

—WRDE - BRE RS

- capital expenditure for acquisition

ZEAEBH of property, plant and equipment 4,067 7,179
— YRS LM R 2 B AR — acquisition of land use rights - 46,134
4,067 53,313
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41, FEEHERE a1.
EAREA
PEEB FAEBEETITRELS

AR HG SO AR T ) R T A

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

ZEEHREAENT operating leases in respect of rented premises as follows:
2008 2007
FHT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000
144 Within one year 6,288 5,684
EIEFESFER tn the second to fifth years inclusive 23,914 2,138
fEELE Over five years 871 1,000
30,573 8,822

BERNNFTETERZRLELK
EmEZENEE -BOADBERR
BEMEFTIF MESTRAANERA
ERIEH -

EHHEA
REAB REAETREBEERTT
] AR S A - BT B A RS A AR

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office and factory premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from ane to nine years and
rentals are fixed over the lease terms.

As lessor
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the future minimum lease payments under

ZHRERERSD S - non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
2008 2007

THx TAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

18R Within one year 7,891 2,428
F2EFESTFRA In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,608 -
10,499 2,428

ZEMRLEP AN AFE B E2 These properties have committed tenants for terms

FRE

ranging from one to two years.
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42.

43.

EERSA

REHE AEERAETEEFEL
i -REERERELRFZEREF
AR - ZEAEZREMERNT -

42, -

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group pledged certain
assets with the following carrying values to secure the
general credit facilities granted to the Group and the
margin accounts with securities brokers:

2008 2007
FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERFHETRREZER Bills discounted with recourse and
EELIR N BR L Ak B factored debtor balances 97,649 91,967
BEEEZRE Investments held for trading 9,726 14,623
EBERELNTHEITABRZ Financial assets designated at fair value
SREE through profit or toss 6,795 17,760
BERERER  EeEHEM Deposits with securities brokers
IRz FRE as included in debtors, deposits
and prepayments 19,657 11,708
HRBE 43.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

REZ2007F3831BLFE  A&H
BAZSMCE—TRAHEHEEENE
R85 fE & 2 — - TE200559A -
BHBARKE (RESMCER) Z %8
CTEF UHRELEERYIEERE
BE2BL8reMBHZ2F &
2005F10A - BEmZEEREM S H
RZEE 2006518 EEHRE
WEBE UTRESZEF B2
BELESF HEIBREER-FEH
BEEELFF FR - SMCZEER
HERHEETOUELF MEMFRE

HEM200783A31A LS E K&
B Rm¥B100,000E T (HER®
770,000 C) Rz S A -FHE
HERFEARFIMRE -
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SMC, which was acquired by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2007, is one of the defendants in a
tawsuit relating to copyright infringement. In September
2005, the defendants, including SMC, filed multiple
motions to dismiss the complaint from the publisher
owners of musical compositions. In October 2005, the
plaintiff filed a motion for summary judgment, In January
2006, the court granted the motions of the defendants
and denied the motion of the plaintiff, thereby dismissing
the case against the defendants with prejudice. The
plaintiff thereafter appealed the decision. During the year,
the claims against SMC were dismissed with prejudice and
the lawsuit was conciuded.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group was
a defendant in a lawsuit in the amount of US$%$100,000
(equivalent to HK$770,000). The case was settled during
the year.
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44,

45,

RRFE P 5T E
AEMRAEELBEEABERSET
ARFHETZEMEE - HHE A
BzEERURAEHAZEE AfE
AERERE -BEHEORERNEKZHE
MERKBIRABAEOEEAE
AHAMREILBFEHZE N RE
-

FERTEMBLIIZEBRETERRK
RERzBEREBENTBZRE -
ZETPEMBLASIARIAESTES
tEMEABRESHR - FEEHE
MRIKE R EH 2 BERRRIEZS
BIFA IR IE RACERIEL B -

BMEALRR

fa) MEFEEAN FEBETERH
JEERE LR TEBR, —IHIE
A EIEE T REREH
8 A ¥ {% ¥ 3% 15,000,000 7T
(20074 : 15,000,000/ 7T) -

FEMEREATRBEE QA
BEXREKRE - KR2008F3A31
B -EERKRALS R HEGX
FHFREAEERMARAR
FHsE24 R25mt -

h EA TEERFL2NEEFE
BREEZEREBRREKEE
ARMHEERMAESZNE
MEEMSHEREEHN (ER
B {7 58) 1,376,000 7T (2007
£ 12,200,000 7T) °

{0 ZEEHEBEABZFH

FRH - EBEFABR BIHITE
B2 BB AR O -

44,

45.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme implemented
by the Hong Kong Government for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The retirement benefit cost for
the MPF charged to the consclidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the fund
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligaticn of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, has
provided a personal guarantee to indemnify the
Group for any impairment of an unlisted available-
for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15 million
(2007: HK$15 million).

The Group maintained current accounts with
related parties and associates. Their balances as
at 31 March 2008 are set out in the consolidated
balance sheet with the terms disclosed in notes 24
and 25.

{b} During the year, the Group paid salaries and
other short term employee benefits, including
share-based payments, of HK$1,376,000 {2007:
HK$2,200,000) to certain close family members
of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a director of the
Company, as employees of the Group.

{a] Compensation of key management perscnnel
Details of the remuneration of key management

personnel, who are the executive directors, during
the year were set out in note 9.
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4. TEHEBLT
R ZETEMBLOAAEOT

M RE
e/ EELE
Place of
incorporation

46.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

BRTEBER
BA/ ERELEE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary

2 £
[
Attributable

HRARBHE or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ TEEK
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
BEERLE HE 2ER 100%  100%  {EER
ACME Delight Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Cosmo Communications X8/ mEx 1,571,000 7T 938% 914% BERELES
Corporation United States US$1,571,000 RiFEER
of America/ Trading in electrical
Canada appliances and
investment holding
XEFRAT B 10,000/ 7T 100% 100% AR
Ever Solid Limited Heng Keng HK$10,000 Investment holding
Hyundai Household EE 2B 100%  100% EBRERES
Improvement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading in electrical
appliances
BHEMNEERAE g 25,000,000/ 5T 100%  100%  RERR
Korrigan Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 Investment hotding
Limited
ENYEEERAT % 2B 100%  100% BUERES
Korrigan Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK§2 Trading in television sets
BECEARLQH Bk 2ET 100% 100% BAER
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Limited
BHEEERDLT e 5,000,000 7T 96% 9%6%  MERE
Merrygain Holding Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Property investment
Limited
Newstar.com Limited EBEBERHE 17T 100%  100%  ZEEM
British Virgin Ussi Investment holding
Islands
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46. FEHE LA — & 46, PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued
AR TR ERITHAR
i/ Exnd RE/ARELEE AEMERE
Place of Nominal value of g8 52
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
). PNEEE or registration/ share capital/ equity interest T EHK
Name of subsidiary operations ~  registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
Nice States [nvestment Limited &E 2B 100% 100%  WMEREE
Rong Kong HK$2 Property investment
XRARRA Y BT 100%  100% RASKEYEBE
Niceday Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding and
property development
BERRATF F# 28T 100% 100% mERE
Noble Win Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
AREBEERAT REEBARES 1R 100%  100%  REER
Ram Light Management British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Limited islands
Sheen United Technology HESERNES 1ET 100%  100%  #EER
Limited British Virgin Us#1 Investment holding
Islands
SIH Limited RHEAREE 10,000/ 7T 100%  100%  BRARK
British Virgin HK$10,000 Investment holding
Islands
Skylight Technologies HREARES ES 100%  100%  HEER
Limited British Virgin ussi Investment holding
Islands
The Singing Machine £ 272,862% T 5407% 47.19% GHBRHOKSBHERS
Company, Inc. * United States US$272.862 Trading in consumer
of America . karaoke audio
equipment
ERETFERAA &R 15,090,000% 5T 100% 100% BrERHES
Star Fair Electronics Hong Kong HK$15,090,000 Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
Star Fair Manufacturing BEG/PE 1285 100%  100% BFER
Company Limited Jersey/PRC £12 CRERHE

Manufacture and sale of
electronic products
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46.

TERBRE - &

HEA2ERE

Sl A- 4
R/ EEER
Place of
incorporation
or registration/

46.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

ERITFEER
BE/EREXEE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

ARG
L §id
Attributable
equity interest

TEER

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
FAEETERAE EE 13,000,000 7T 100%  100% STFERES
Star Light Electronics Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
EERREARLT A 2T 100%  100%  {RE#ER
Starleaf Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investrment holding
Starlight eTech (Hofdings) FRERFHD (57 100% 100% AR
Limited British Virgin Usi? Investment holding
{slands
ARLOERAE & 2T 100%  100%  HERE
Starlight Exports Limited Hong Kang HK$2 Property investment
FREEEERRE Eh 73,920,192} 7T 100%  100%  WEZER
Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73,920,192 Investment holding
Limited
Star Legend Offshore REABTHE 1ER 100%  100%  REER
Limited British Virgin Us$ Investment holding
Islands
Star Legend Technologies ERGARESD ES 100%  100% &R
Limited British Virgin UsS$1 Investment holding
Islands
Starlight Manufacturers BARE /¢ 100,000 7 100%  100%  HIEQRHENEE
Limited Jersey/PRC HK$100,000 Manufacture and sale of
electronic products
ARSEREAB LA g 2B 100%  100%  BFERKH
Starlight Marketing Hong Keng HK$2 Marketing in electronic
Development Limited products
FETEHEARDR it 28T 100% 100% BHEETXREFER
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 5
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Securities trading and
trading in electronic
products
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46.

FEKBAOT - #A

Hfms TR
/g
Place of
incorporation

46.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

CRITHEE
BE/SMRAEAE
Nominal vatue of
issued ordinary

EEMEL
N §2
Attributable

HEAREHE or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ EEHE
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
FHER TG R FIRE iy 100,000 7% 100%  100% BFEGES
BRERMERLR Macau HK$100,000 Trading in electronic
Starlight Marketing Macao products
Commercial Offshore Limited
Starlight Overseas Marketing BB RH£HiH £ 100%  t00% EFEMES
Limited Republic of us$1 Trading in electronic
Mauritius products
ARHAER A Fig 10,000/ 7% 100%  100% DREBR
Starlight R&D Limited Hong Keng HK$10,000 RETRMRE
Material sourcing and
provision of engineering
services
FAERER A BB 4B 100%  100%  ARELARERE
Starlight Video Limited Hang Kong HK$4 REEBREGEMRES
Provision of nominee
services for group
companies and trading
of DVD products
Starlite Consumer Electronics Hes 2B 100% 100% HFERES
(USA) Inc. Cayman Islands HK32 Trading in electronic
products
Starlite Consumer Electronics = 20 100% - BrERHES
(USA) Inc. United States us§20 Trading in electronic
of America producis
Starshow Invastment Limited g LB 100%  100%  RRELARERERSE
Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of nominee
services for group
companies
EHNEARAT ik 4,000,000/87C 80% 80%  ZBERHERES
Success Base industries Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Limited plastic products
Top Spring Technology HEBEEREG £ 100%  100%  WEER
Limited British Virgin Us$ Investment holding
Islands
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46.

TEMBLE - &

46.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — continued

SR rRE ERTHER
M/ gxnl BRE/EREREE .3 1. ] T
Ptace of Nominal value of EEEH
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
il PAEEE or registration/ share capital/ equity interest  TEHH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007

BHEBETHEER DA - 33,300,000/ T 100%  100%  BFELUERHE
Starfair Manufacturing PRC* HK$33,300,000 Manufacture and sale of

(Panyu) Company Limited electronic products
RIARBFERDA hE 60,000,000 7% 100%  100%  BFEREBREE
Shenzhen Starlight PRC* HK$60,000,000 Manufacture and sale of

Elecironics Co. Ltd. electronic products
FREELEARREARAT PEx  ARM31,750,000%T 100%  100%  PIERE

PRC* RMB31,750,000 Property development

EREREBRIERAF PR 20,000,000/ 7T 100% 80%  PBERHEREE
Panyu Success Base Plastic PRC* HK$20,000,600 Manufacture and sale of

Company Limited plastic products
EREEEENHEEERH h - 21,500,000/ & 100%  100% EFERBERFE
Panyu Starfair Electronics PRC* HK$21,500,000 Manufacture and sale of

Manufacturing Company Limited electronic products
* MECABAPRZMEDE - * The subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned

enterprises.

# 5 A I [ ] 8 iR SMCEE ¥ [350% # The Group is able to exercise control over SMC since

HERO Ao #HSMCITEEY
HomMEEEAMCZE B AR
Hoegbsbh - B2007€E3A318
ITESMCEITTAEMABRER
- RBERMCZREZHENE
53.27% ° Bt - SMCHE FIl fE A &= [
ZHBoR .

514

=S

HERRALERMINADAHERT
BHFAFEZ2RRAARENTE X

HMEARMEEFEHIERS - £ H

BRAMEHHAMMBLRZHE
BT ERBRR -

BXSIH Limited & Star Legend Qffshore
Lmited R X DB EEMFAEN FEH
twHBLRAERRAMERSE R
REBRFAFEFEANEAERE 158K
BorEMREREEES -
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over 50% of the board cf directors are nominated by the
Group and the Group is the single largest shareholder of
SMC. In addition, as at 31 March 2007, upon exercise of
warrants issued by SMC to the Group, the Group's equity
interest in SMC will increase to 53.27%. Accordingly, it is
classified as a subsidiary of the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the year or constitute a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Other than SIH Limited and Star lL.egend Offshore Limited
which are held directly by the Company, all other
subsidiaries are held indirectly by the Company. None of
the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A

EE3IA3MBLEHE
Year ended 31 March
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
THExT T#T THET FET FHT
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
-4 RESULTS
=] Turnover 1,785,247 1,630,741 1,782,771 2,434,241 2,199,033
EXBLAIRF Profit before taxation 101,603 56,768 90,691 119,906 64,025
Ej e Taxation {720y  (5,694) (11,452}  {9,715) (18,531)
FERHN Profit for the year 100,883 51,074 79,239 110,191 45,494
T8 AT, Attributable to:
F: /NI 1 Shareholders of the
Company 100,065 50,526 79,141 105,196 45,914
L EBRRER Minority interests 818 548 98 4,995 {420)
100,883 51,074 79,239 110,191 45,494
#38318 -
At 31 March
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FHET T FHET THET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
HEHRAEH ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERE Total assets 1,023,051 975,841 1,219,487 1,432,998 1,474,310
Bfiiigm Total liabilities 352,718 292,474 490,793 620,648 674,534
670,333 683,367 728,694 812,350 799,776
BBl H LR Equity attributable to
shareholders of
the Company 668,068 68t,814 727,177 797,117 781,739
o) =3 bl Share option reserve of )
R R ERE S a listed subsidiary - - - 66 253
DA E RS Minority interests 1,365 1,553 1,517 15,167 17,784
670,333 683,367 728694 812350 799,776
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
1 5 ¥y 56 B 1

fERHARERZREDR
Investment properties
held for rental purposes

BEHEHE
(FAR)
Gross floor
area {sq. f1.)

MEHHE
Nature
of property

)

FE (b HE 2%
Attributable
interest

to the Group

BHoH

Category of lease

BERELBBEE 189
BIREE AL 13488 -C - D
Units B, C and D on

13th Floor of

Guangdong Tours Centre
No. 18 Pennington Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

EREPERESEBISH
B—rL261EA

Unit A, 26th Floor

United Centre

No. 95 Queensway, Central
Hong Kong

ERETBIFEEIFXRE22H
WA T REAM18E
18th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong
ERFBFEBFRE232H
WM E K 1442

14th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong
BRBRTEEFXNE22R
WETE A28

12th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building
No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

ER o BRI LESR
221 R 36ER

2,280

5,543

12,079

13,974

13,974

63,968
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SES

Commercial

ES

Commercial

IE

Industrial

I%

Industrial

T%

Industrial

ES

Commercial

100%

100%

100%

100%

96%

100%

REMBEH

Long leases

REHELD

Long leases

REHBLH

Long leases

REHELD

Lang leases

RFEHAH

Long leases

REHHEBD
Long leases
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action you should take, you should
consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional

accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Starlight International Heldings Limited, you
should at once hand this circular and the accompanying proxy form to the purchaser or transferee, or to
the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale was effected for transmission to the purchaser

or transferee.
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contenis of this circular, makes

no representation as 1o its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

SITARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ABBBRABRSA

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
{Stock Code: 485)

PROPOSALS INVOLVING
GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES © .,
AND TO ISSUE SHARES, “

]

Fisa.
i
"

sl [}

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS AND.:::
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING . °

A notice convening an annual general meeting of Starlight International Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) to be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane, 310 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
on Thursday, 18th September, 2008 at 3:00 p.m. is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this circular. Whether or
not you propose to atiend the meeting, you are requested to complete the accompanying proxy form in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to the head office and principal place
of business of the Company at 5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road, Hong
Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the
holding of the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Completion and return of a proxy form will not
preclude shareholders from attending and voting at the annual general meeting if they so wish.

*  for identification purpose only
Hong Kong, 31st July, 2008




STARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
AEBERERA

{(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 485)

Proxy form for use at the annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 18th September, 2008 at 3:00 p.m. and at any
adjournment thereof

I/We (note 1)
of

being the registered holder(s) of {note 2) shares of HK$0.40 each in the capital of
STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ("the Company™), HEREBY APPOINT (note 3)

of or failing

him, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the annual general meeting (or at any adjournment thereof) of
the Company to be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane. 310 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong on Thursday, the 18th day
of September, 2008 at 3;00 p.m. and at the said meeting (or at any adjournment thereof) to vote for me/us and in my/our name(s) as
hereunder indicated or, if no such indication is given, as my/our proxy thinks fil. (note 4).

FOR AGAINST
(Note 4) (Note 4}

l. To receive and consider the financial statements for the year ended 3ist March, 2008
and the repont of the directors and independent auditor’s report.

2. (@}  To re-elect Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong as director.
{b}  To re-clect Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk as director.
(¢}  To re-elect Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin as director.

(d)  Tore-clect Mr. Norman Ho Hau Chong as director.

(¢) To authorize the board of directors to fix the remuneration of the directors.

3. To re-appoint auditors and to authorize the board of directors to fix the remuneration
of audilors.

4. Ordinary resolution in item 4 of notice of annual general meeting (To grant a general
mandate to the directors to repurchase shares not exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital.)

5. Ordinary resolution in item 5 of notice of annual general meeting (To grant a general
mandate to the directors to issuc additional shares not exceeding 20% of the issue
share capital.)

6. Ordinary resolution in item 6 of notice of annual general meeting (To extend the
general mandate under item 4.)

Dated the day of . 2008. Shareholder's Signature (note 5} :

Notes:-

1. Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

2, Please insert the number of shares of HK$0,40 each to which this proxy relates 1egistered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this
proxy form will be deemed 1o refate to all the shares of the Company registered in your name(s).

3. Please insert the name and address of proxy desired in the space provided. IF NO NAME 1S INSERTED, THE CHAIRMAN OF THE
MEETING WILL ACT AS YOUR PROXY.

4, IMPORTANT : IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR ANY RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK THE BOX MARKED “FOR” BESIDE THE
APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. IF YOU WISH TO VOTE AGAINST ANY RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK THE BOX MARKED
“AGAINST" BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. Failure to complete any or all boxes will entitle your proxy to cast his votes
at his discretion. Your proxy will also be enlitled to vote at his discretion on any resolvtion properly put to the meeting other than those
referred to in the notice convening the meeting.

5. This proxy torm must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of a corporation, must be either under its
comman seal or under the hand of an officer or atiorney duly authorised.
6. Where there are joint registered holders of any share. any one of such persons may vole at the meeting, cither persenally or by proxy. in

respect of such share as if he was solely entitted thereto: but if more than one of such joint holders be present al the mecting personally or
by proxsy. that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first on the register of members in respect of such share shall alone be
entitled to vote in respect thercof.

7. To be valid, this proxy form, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially eentified
copy thereof, must be deposited at the Company’s head office and principal place of business, Sth Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232
Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

8. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled 10 appoint one or more proxies to attend and. on a poll,
vote instead of him. The proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting in person to represent you, Completion
and deposit of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting if you so wish.

9. Any alteration made in this proxy form must be initialled by the person who signs it.

*  for identification purpose only
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the following meanings unless the conrext requires

otherwise:-

“Annual General Meeting” or
lLAGM!J

“AGM Notice”

“Board”

“Bye-Laws”

*Companies Act”

“Company”

“Directors”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

*Ordinary Resolutions”

*Repurchase Proposal”

“Repurchase Resolution”™

the annval general meeting of the Company to be held at Lavender
Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane, 310 Gloucester Road, Hong
Kong on Thursday, 18th September, 2008 at 3:00 p.m. and/or any

adjournment thereof

the notice dated 31st July, 2008 convening the AGM as set out on
pages 13 to 16 of this circular

the board of Directors
the Bye-Laws of the Company for the time being
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

Starlight International Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange

the directors of the Company

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China

25th July, 2008, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information
referred to in this circular

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the proposed ordinary resolution(s) as referred to in the AGM
Notice

the proposal to give a general mandate to the Directors to exercise
the powers of the Company to repurchase during the period as set
out in the Repurchase Resolution Shares up to a maximum of 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
passing of the Repurchase Resolution

the proposed ordinary resolution as referred to in resolution no.4
of the AGM Notice




DEFINITIONS

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“Stock Exchange”

“Takeovers Code”

“HK$”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong)

share(s) of HK$0.40 each in the share capital of the Company
holders of the share(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

STARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
AEEBERAERRZA

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Executive Directors:

Lau Sak Hong, Philip (Chairman)
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony

Lau Sak Yuk, Andy

Non-Executive Director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

{Stock Code: 485)

Registered Office:
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal
Place of Business:

Independent Nen-Executive Directors: 5th Floor

Ho Hau Chong, Norman Shing Dao Industrial Building
Chan Chak Chung 232 Aberdeen Main Road
Winston Calptor Chuck Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 31st July, 2008
To the sharcholders,

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSALS INVOLVING
GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES,
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1. INTRODUCTION

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18th Sepiember, 2007, general mandates
were given by the Company to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase Shares
and to allot, issue and deal with Shares. Such general mandates will lapse at the AGM.

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with the information regarding the proposed renewal
of the general mandates to allot, issue and deal with Shares, extension of such general mandate and to
repurchase Shares and re-election of retiring directors and to seek your approval of the resolutions
relating to these matters at the AGM.

¥ for identification purpose only




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

2, GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

The Directors propose to seek your approval of the Repurchase Resolution to be proposed at the
AGM details of which are set out in Ordinary Resolution no.4 in the AGM Notice. The Shares, which
may be repurchased pursuant to the Repurchase Resolution, are Shares representing up to 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital in issue as at the date of passing the Repurchase
Resolution. An explanatory statement as required under the Listing Rules to provide the requisite
information of the Repurchase Proposal is set out in the Appendix I hereto.

3. GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

It will also be proposed at the AGM two ordinary resolutions respectively granting to the Directors
a general mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of passing the resolution and adding to such general mandate so granted to the
Directors any Shares representing the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares repurchased by the
Company after the granting of the general mandate to repurchase Shares up to 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing the Repurchase Resolution.

Subject to the passing of the ordinary resolution granting the general mandate to issue new Shares
and on the basis that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the AGM, the Company would
be allowed under such general mandate to issue a maximum of 158,075,765 Shares representing 20% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date.

Details of general mandate to issue Shares and the extension of such general mandate are
respectively set out in Ordinary Resolutions nos.5 and 6 in the AGM Notice.

4, RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors currently consists of seven Directors, namely Messrs. Philip Lau Sak Hong,
Anthony Lau Sak Kai, Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Peter Hon Sheung Tin, Norman Ho Hau Chong, Chan Chak
Chung and Winston Calptor Chuck.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 82 of the Bye-Laws, Messrs. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Peter Hon Sheung Tin and
Norman Ho Hau Chong shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM and shall be eligible and offer
themselves for re-election.

In addition, Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, who is the chairman and managing director of the Company
and is not subject to the retirement by rotation pursuant to Starlight International Holdings Limited
Company Act 1989, wiil voluntarily retire from his directorship at the AGM and offer himself for re-
election.

Details of retiring Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM are set out in the Appendix II of
this circular.
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5. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

On pages 13 to 16 of this circular, you will find the AGM Notice which contains, inter alia, the
Ordinary Resolutions to approve the Repurchase Proposal, the grant of general mandate to issue Shares
and the extension of such general mandate and the re-election of retiring Directors.

6. RIGHTS TO DEMAND A POLL

At the AGM, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless
(before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand
for a poll) a poll is duly demanded or unless, in the case of any share capital of the Company listed on
the Stock Exchange, a poll is required to be taken under the rules, regulations or codes of such stock
exchange. Subject to the Companies Act, a poll may be demanded by:-

(a)  the chairman of the meeting; or

(b)  at least three members present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative or
by proxy and entitled to vote; or

(c) any member or members present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative
or by proxy and representing in the aggregate not less than one-tenth of the total voting
rights of all the members having the right 1o attend and vote at the meeting; or

(d) any member or members present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative
or by proxy and holding shares conferring a right to attend and vote a1 the meeting on which
there have been paid up sums in the aggregate equal to not less than one-tenth of the total
sum paid up on all shares conferring that right.

On a show of hands, every member who is present in person or is present by a duly authorised
corporate representative or by proxy shall have one vole, and on a poll every member present in person
or, by a duly authorised corporate representative or by proxy shall have one vote for every fully-paid
share of which he is the holder. On a poll a member entitled to more than one vote need not use all his
votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

7. ACTION TO BE TAKEN

A proxy form for use at the AGM is enclosed herein. Whether or not you intend to attend the
AGM, you are requested to complete the proxy form in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
and return it to the head office and principal place of business of the Company, 5th Floor, Shing Dao
Industrial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the AGM. Completion and return of a proxy form will not preclude Shareholders
from attending and voting at the AGM if they so wish,
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8. RECOMMENDATION

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal, general mandate to issue new Shares,
extension of such general mandate to issue Shares and re-election of the retiring Directors are all in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend that all
Shareholders should vote in favour of the resolutions set out in the AGM Notice.

By Order of the Board
LAU SAK HONG, PHILIP

Chairman




APPENDIX 1 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This appendix serves as an explanatory statement, as required by the Listing Rules, to provide the
requisite information to you for your consideration of the proposal to permit the repurchase of Shares up
to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the Repurchase
Resolution,

1. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Dale, the issued share capital of the Company comprised 790,378,828
Shares.

Subject to the passing of the Repurchase Resolution and on the basis that no further Shares are
issued or repurchased after the Latest Practicable Date and prior to the AGM, the Company would be
allowed under the Repurchase Resolution to repurchase a maximum of 79,037,882 Shares.

2, REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders. Such repurchase may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at the
time, lead to an enhancement of the net assets and/or earnings per Share of the Company and will only be
made when the Directors believe that such a repurchase will benefit the Company and the Shareholders.

3. FUNDING OF REPURCHASE

In repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds legatly available for such purpose in
accordance with its memorandum of association and Bye-Laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda. The
Companies Act provides that the amount of capital repaid in connection with a share repurchase may only
be paid out of either the capital paid up on the relevant shares, or the profits that would otherwise be
available for dividend or the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purpose. The amount of
premium payable on repurchase may only be paid out of either the profits that would otherwise be
available for dividend or out of the share premium or contributed surplus accounts of the Company.

There might be an adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Company as
compared with the position disclosed in the audited accounts contained in the annual report for the year
ended 31st March, 2008 in the event that the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Proposal was to be carried out in full at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the
Directors do not propose to exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal
to such extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working capital
requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to
time appropriate for the Company.
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4. SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange during each
of the previous twelve months before the Latest Practicable Date are as follows:-

Highest Lowest

HK3 HKS$

July 2007 2.600 2.220
August 2007 2.300 1.500
September 2007 1.880 1.720
October 2007 1.830 1.420
November 2007 1.520 1.270
December 2007 1.400 1.240
January 2008 1.320 0.830
February 2008 1.000 0.810
March 2008 (.850 0.640
April 2008 (.720 0.640
May 2008 0.820 0.650
June 2008 0.700 0.610
July 2008 (up to and including the Latest Practicable Date) 0.620 0.425

s UNDERTAKING

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may be applicable,
they will exercise the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal
and in accordance with the Listing Rules, Bye-Laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable enquiries, any
of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), have any present intention to sell any Shares to the
Company or its subsidiaries under the Repurchase Proposal if the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the
Shareholders and exercised by the Board.

No connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) have notified the Company that he has a
present intention to sell Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries, or have undertaken not to do so, in the
event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the Shareholders and exercised by the Board,

6. TAKEOVERS CODE

If on the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal, a
Shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be
treated as an acquisition for the purposes of Rule 32 of the Takeovers Code. As a result, a shareholder or
group of Shareholders acting in concert could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become
obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code.
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At the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong and his associates, including companies
and trust controlled by him, held on a beneficial basis 274,972,930 Shares representing 34.79% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Based on such shareholdings and in the event that the Directors
exercised in full the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Resolution, the shareholdings
of Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong and his associates would be increased to approximately 38.66% of the issued
share capital of the Company. Based on such shareholding and in the event the Directors exercised in full
the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal, an obligation to make a general
offer by Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong to shareholders under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code may arise. The
Directors have no present intention to exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Proposal to such an extent as to result in takeover obligations.

In the event that the Repurchase Proposal is exercised in full, the number of Shares held by the
public would not fall below 25%.

7. SHARES REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company had not repurchased any Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the
six months preceding the Latest Practicable Date.




APPENDIX II DETAILS OF DIRECTORS TO BE RE-ELECTED

The following are the particulars of the directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM to be held
on 18th September, 2008:-

Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, aged 61, was appointed executive director of the Company since 26th
September, 1989. He is also the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. He has been in the
Group for 38 years and over 38 years of management experience in the electronics industry. Mr. Lau did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years. Mr. Lau is also a
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group of the Company. Save as disclosed above, he does not
held any position of the Company and other companies within the Group,

He is the eldest brother of Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai, Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Ms. Carol Lau Chui
Lan, Mr. Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi. They are the executive directors and senior
management of the Company. He is the father of Mr. Lau Yat Tung and Mr. Lau Yat Sun, both sentor
management of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lau does not have any relationships with the
Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau has personal interests, corporate interests and other
interests in 92,638,029 shares, 13,265,692 shares and 169,069,207 shares respectively, totalling
274,972,930 shares, representing in aggregate approximately 34.79% of the issuved share capital of the
Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lau is entitled to an annual remuneration package of HK$8,535,888. Such sum was determined
by the Board with reference to market terms, his duties and responsibilities in the Group and the Group’s
remuneration policy. He is also entitled to a year end discretionary bonus determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion having regard to the Company’s performance and the marketing situation. There is no
director’s service contract entered into between the Company and Mr. Lau. He is not appointed for a
specific term and is not subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with Starlight International
Holdings Limited Company Act 1989. He is entitled to a director fee of not less than HK$50,000 per
annum which is subject to the approval of the Board by reference to the prevailing marketing conditions
and the shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau has confirmed that there are no other matters that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, aged 58, was appointed executive director of the Company since 26th
September, 1989. He is in charge of the research and development of the Group and has been in the
Group for 36 years. Mr. Lau did not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years. Mr. Lau is also a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, he does not held any position of the Company and other companies within the Group.

He is the brother of Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong and Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai, Ms. Carol Lau Chui
Lan, Mr. Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi. They are the executive directors and senior
management of the Company. Mr. Lau Yat Tung and Mr. Lau Yat Sun are the sons of Mr. Philip Lau Sak
Hong. They are the senior management of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lau does not have
any relationships with the Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholder of the
Company.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lau has personal interests and corporate interests in
35,827,445 shares and 13,265,692 shares respectively, totalling 49,093,137 shares, representing in
aggregate approximately 6.21% of the issued share capital of the Company, within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO.

Mr. Lau is entitled to an annual remuneration package of HK$1,450,149. Such sum was determined
by the Board with reference to market terms, his duties and responsibilities in the Group and the Group’s
remuneration policy. He is also entitled to a year end discretionary bonus determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion having regard to the Company’s performance and the marketing situation. There is no
director’s service contract entered into between the Company and Mr. Lau. He is not appointed for a
specific term and is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws. He is entitled to a director fee of not less than HK$50,000 per annum which is subject to the
approval of the Board by reference to the prevailing marketing conditions and the shareholders’ approval
at an annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, Mr, Lau has confirmed that there are no other matters that need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 67, had been an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 1988 and re-designated as non-executive director of the Company on 28th September,
2004. He has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 36 years. He retired as Senior Partner
of Messrs. Hon & Co., Solicitors & Notaries since 1st April, 2008 and remains as consultant. He is also
an independent non-executive director of Automated Systems Holdings Limited, a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of Starlight Industrial Holdings Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, he did not hold any directorship in other public listed companies in
the last three years and does not hold any position of a Company and other companies within the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Hon has personal interests of 206,769 shares in the Company
within the meaning of PART XV of SFO. He does not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Hon is appointed for a term until 30th September, 2009 and subject to retirement and re-
election provisions in the Bye-Laws. He is entitled to have a director fee of HK$50,000 per annum which
is subject to the approval of the Board by reference to the prevailing market conditions and the
shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting. He is not entitled to any other emoluments
including bonus.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hon has confirmed that there are no other matters that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v} of the Listing Rules.




APPENDIX I1 DETAILS OF DIRECTORS TO BE RE-ELECTED

Mr. Norman Ho Hau Cheng, aged 52, was appointed independent non-executive director of the
Company since lst October, 1998. He is a member of audit committee of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Exeter, and is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accounts in England and Wales, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts. He
has over 20 years of experience in management and property development.

He is a director in CITIC Pacific Limited, Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee
Hing Development Limited, Miramar Hotel & Investment Company, Limited, Shun Tak Holdings Limited,
Taifook Securities Group Limited and New World Mobile Holdings Limited which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Ho resigned as director of ITC Properties Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, on 12th September, 2007. Save as disclosed above, he did not hold any directorship in other
public listed company in the last three years and any position of the Company and other companies within
the Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Ho did not have any relationship with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company and did not have any interest in
Shares, within the meaning of Part XV of SFO.

Mr. Ho is appointed for a term until 30th September, 2009 and subject to retirement and re-election
provisions in the Bye-Laws. He is entitled to have a director fee of HK$50,000 per annum which is
subject to the approval of the Board by reference to the prevailing market conditions and the
Shareholder’s approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho has confirmed that there are no other matiers that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders in connection with his re-election and there are no other
information that should be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51(2)}(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules,

In the opinions of the Directors, other than the aforesaid matters, there is no other matters need to

be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in relation to the re-election of the above retiring
directors.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

STARLITE

STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FARAEBRBRQXA

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 485)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of Starlight International
Holdings Limited will be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park Lane, 310 Gloucester Road, Hong
Kong on Thursday, the 18th September, 2008 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purpose:-

1. - To receive and consider the financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March, 2008 and the
report of the directors and independent auditor’s report.

2. To re-elect retiring Directors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix the remuneration
of Directors.

3. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix their remuneration of
auditors.
4, As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution of the Company:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT:-

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.40 each in the capital of the Company on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange™) or on any other stock
exchange on which the shares of the Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other
stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved:

* for identification purpose only
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(b)

(c)

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the Directors of the
Company is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing this Resolution and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:-

1) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by any applicable laws of Bermuda or the Bye-Laws

of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied by
an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT:-

(a)

(b)

{c)

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of HK$0.40 each in the
capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into
shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of such power
after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued
by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) of this
resolution, otherwise than pursvant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined): (ii)
an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company from
time to time; (iii) an issue of shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement
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(d)

for the time being adopted for the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire shares
of the Company; or (iv) an issue of shares upon the exercise of rights of subscription
or conversion under the terms of any warrants of the Company, shall not exceed 20%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and

for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Pericd” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:-

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by any applicable laws of Bermuda or the Bye-Laws
of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied
by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or issue of options, warrants or other
securities giving right to subscribe for shares of the Company, open for a period fixed
by the Directors of the Company to holders of shares of the Company, or any class of
shares of the Company, whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company {(and, where appropriate, to holders of other securities of the Company
entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to their holdings of such
shares {(or, where appropriate such other securities) as at that date (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the Company).”
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6. As special business, 1o consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resotution as an
ordinary reselution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of Resolutions set out in items 4 and 5 of the notice
convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to the Resolution set out in item 5 of the
notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of an
amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution set out in
item 4 of the notice convening this meeting, provided that such amount of shares so
repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Peter Lee Yip Wah

Secretary

Hong Kong, 31st July, 2008.

Notes:-

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him, A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a proxy form, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a
notarially certifted copy thereof, must be deposited at the head office and principal place of business of the Company at
5th Floor, Shing Dao Indusirial Building, 232 Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The retiring directers standing for re-election under item 2 above are Messrs. Philip Lav Sak Hong, Andy Lau Sak Yuk,
Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong.

As at the date of this netice, the board of directors of the Compuny comprised Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip (Chairman), Mr.
Lau Sak Kai. Antheny and Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy as executive directors; Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin as non-executive
director and Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman, Mr. Chan Chak Chung and Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck as independent non-
executive directors.
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STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED:¢: -, -.

FAEBEBRERAF" AT

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liahility)
(Stock Code: 485)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of Starlight
International Holdings Limited will be held at Lavender Room, 27th Floor, The Park
Lane, 310 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong on Thursday, the 18th September, 2008 at
3:00 p.m. for the following purpose:—

1.  To receive and consider the financial statements for the year ended 31st March,
2008 and the report of the directors and independent auditor’s report.

N

To re-elect retiring Directors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix the
remuneration of Directors.

3. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of Directors to fix their
remuneration of auditors.

4.  As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as
an crdinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT:—

(a} subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all
the powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.40 each in the
capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on which the shares of
the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject
to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of
any other stock exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

* for identification purpose only




(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the Directors
of the Company is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this resolution shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
passing this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from
the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:-

(1) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii} the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by any applicable laws of Bermuda
or the Bye-Laws of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or
varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as
an ordinary resclution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
“THAT:-

(a) subject to paragraph (c¢) of this resolution, the exercise by the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
of HK$0.40 each in the capital of the Company and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require
the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall authorise the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to make
or grant offers, agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;



(c)

(d)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an
option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise than pursuant
to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an issue of shares as scrip
dividends pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company from time to time; (iii)
an issue of shares under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the
time being adopted for the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire shares
of the Company; or (iv) an issue of shares upon the exercise of rights of
subscription or conversion under the terms of any warrants of the Company,
shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:-

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii} the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by any applicable laws of Bermuda
or the Bye-Laws of the Company to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or
varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or issue of options, warrants or other
securities giving right to subscribe for shares of the Company, open for a
period fixed by the Directors of the Company to holders of shares of the
Company, or any class of shares of the Company, whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company (and, where appropriate, to holders of
other securities of the Company entitled to the offer) on a fixed record date in
proportion to their holdings of such shares (or, where appropriate such other
securities) as at that date (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements
as the Directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation
to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations
under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or
any stock exchange in, any territory applicable to the Company).”




As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of Resolutions set out in items 4 and 5 of the
notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted to the Directors of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to the Resolution
set out in item 5 of the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended
by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount
of shares in the capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under the
authority granted pursuant to Resolution set out in item 4 of the notice convening
this meeting, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of passing the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Peter Lee Yip Wah
Secretary

Hong Kong, 31st July, 2008.

Notes:—

3]

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or
more proxies to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a proxy form, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed, or a netarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the head office
and principal place of business of the Company at 5th Floor, Shing Dao Industrial Building, 232
Aberdeen Main Road, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The retiring directors standing for rc-election under item 2 above are Messrs. Philip Lau Sak Hong.
Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong.

As at the date of this notice, the board of directors of the Company comprised Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip (Chairman), Mr. Lau Sak Kai, Anthony and Mr, Lau Sak Yuk, Andy as executive directors;
Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin as non-executive dircctor and Mr, Ho Hau Chong, Norman, Mr. Chan
Chak Chung and Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck as independent non-executive directors.



Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
For the month ended J1st July, 2008

TO: The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

From: Starlight International Holdings Limited
(Name of Company)

Mr. Peter Lee Yip Wah Tel No.: 28271778
(Name of Responsible Official)

Date: 6th August, 2008

FORM ]

(A) Information of Types of Listed Equity Securities:
(please tick wherever applicable)

1. Ordinary shares : V 2. Preference shares:
3. Other classes of shares : please specify:
4. Warrants : please specify:




(B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital:

No. of Ordinary shares/Preference
shares/other classes of shares
Balance at close of preceding

month: 1,250,000,000
Increase/(Decrease)

(SGM approval date): Nil
Balance at close of the month: 1,250,000,000

Par Value (HK$)

$0.40

Nil

$0.40

Authorised Share Capital (HKS$)

$500,000,000

Nil

$500,000,000

(C) Movement in Issued Share Capital:

No. of Ordinary shares

Balance at close of preceding
month: 790,378,828

Increase/(Decrease) 0
during the month

Balance at close of the month: 790,378,828

No. of Preference shares

Nil

Nil

Nil

No. of other classes of shares

Nil

Nil

Nil




(D) Details of Movement:

* please delete and insert “N/A” wherever inapplicable

SECURITIES
INISSUE AT SECURITIES INNO. OF
TYPE OF SECURITIES CLOSE OF MOVEMENT DURING THE MONTH IN ISSUE AT NEW SHARES
PRECEDING CLOSE OF THE | ARISING
MONTH MONTH THEREFROM
SHARE OPTIONS*
T'ype No. of Options Granted Exercised Cancelled No. of Options
1. Employee share option scheme
adopted on 12th September, 2002
Exercise price: HK$0.86 3,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 3,000,000
Exercise price: HK$0.814 500,000 Nil Nil Nil 500,000
Exercise price: HK$0.89 12,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 12,000,000
Exercise price: HK$1.45 2,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 2,000,000
Exercise price: HK$1.66 220,000 Nil Nil Nil 220,000
Exercise price: HK$1.72 40,000 Nil Nil Nil 40,000
Exercise price: HK$1.93 3,000,000 Nil Nil Nil 3,000,000
2. Employee share option scheme
adopted on 1 5th January, 2008
Exercise price: HK$1.042 150,000 Nil Nil Nil 150,000
Exercise price: HK$0.96 346,000 Nil Nil Nil 346,000
WARRANTS* Nominal Value Nominal Value
Date of Expiry (HK$) Exercised (HKS$) (HK$)
l.
Subscription price HK$
2.
Subscription price HK$




_CONVERTIBLES* Converted
Class Units (Units) Units
Convertibles Notes N/A N/A N/A

Convertible price: HK$

OTHER ISSUES OF SHARES*

Rights Issue Price: Issue and allotment Date:
Placing Price: Issue and allotment Date:
Bonus Issue Issue and allotment Date;
Scrip Dividend Issue and allotment Date:
Repurchase of share Cancellation Date:
Redemption of share Redemption Date:
Consideration issue Price: Issue and allotment Date:
Others (Please specify) Price: Issue and allotment Date:
Total No. of ordinary shares/preference shares/other classes of shares 0
increased/(decreased) during the month:
Remarks:
Authorised Sigpato
Name: Peter Lee Yip Wah
Title: Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market data at the sole discretion of the
Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.
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